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Corporate Information
ATEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)

HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
WONG Chi Ying, Anthony (Vice Chairman)

LIU Sau Lai

NG Chi Ming

Independent Non-executive Directors:
HO Wai Chi, Paul

CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

COMPANY SECRETARY
CHAN Ka Ho

AUDIT COMMITTEE

HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

HUI Sai Chung

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)
CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

HUI Sai Chung

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman)

CHAN Dit Lung

CHING Yu Lung

BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

PUBLIC RELATIONS CONSULTANT

Strategic Financial Relations Limited

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HMI |

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE
OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Unit 3, 6th Floor

Hopeful Factory Centre

10 Wo Shing Street

Fo Tan, Shatin

New Territories

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRARS (IN BERMUDA)
MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

26 Burnaby Street

Hamilton HM1 |

Bermuda

BRANCH REGISTRARS (IN HONG KONG)

Union Registrars Limited

Suites 3301-04, 33/F

Two Chinachem Exchange Square
338 King's Road

North Point, Hong Kong

STOCK CODE
1047

WEBSITE
http://www.nhh.com.hk
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Mr HUI Sai Chung, aged 69, is the Chairman and a co-founder of the Group. He is
responsible for formulating and overseeing the implementation of the Group's business
strategy. He is also responsible for the marketing and sales functions of the Group. He has

more than 46 years' experience in the plastics industry.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, aged 67, is the Deputy Chairman, Managing Director and a co-
founder of the Group. He is responsible for the overall operations and administration of
the Group. He has more than 46 years' experience in the plastics industry and he was
awarded the Associateship (Plastic Industry) by The Professional Validation Council of

Hong Kong Industries.

Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony, aged 60, is the Vice Chairman of the Group. He is in
charge of the R&D centre of the Group, as well as developing business activities and
opportunities for the Group. Before joining the Group in the present capacity, Dr Wong
was an Associate Professor in the Department of Industrial and Manufacturing Systems
Engineering of The University of Hong Kong. He holds a B.Tech (Hons) degree and a Ph.D
degree in Chemical Engineering and is also a Chartered Engineer, Chartered Scientist, a
corporate member of The Institution of Chemical Engineers and a member of The Hong
Kong Institution of Engineers. He had worked for two multinational chemical companies

prior to taking up a lecturer post with The University of Hong Kong in 1986.

Madam LIU Sau Lai, aged 58, is responsible for credit control of the Group. She holds a
Bachelor of Business Administration degree from The Open University of Hong Kong. She
joined the Group in 1977. Madam Liu is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of

Directors. She has more than 31 years' experience in plastic materials trading.

Mr NG Chi Ming, aged 51, is the Technology Development Director of Greater
China Department, Operations Director of Colorants Business of the Group and the
General Manager (Acting) of Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Trading Co,, Ltd. He is responsible
for developing of plastics colouration, compounding technology and key accounts in the
Greater China market. He holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry from the Hong
Kong Polytechnic (The Hong Kong Polytechnic University's predecessor). He also holds a
Master of Engineering Management degree from the University of Technology, Sydney. He
joined the Group in 1988 and left in 1995. He re-joined the Group in early 1998 and has

over 27 years’ experience in plastic colouration and plastic injection moulding techniques.
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Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, aged 65, is the managing partner of Paul W.C. Ho & Company,
Certified Public Accountants (Practising). He holds a Bachelor degree in Social Sciences
and is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales, United Kingdom and a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified

Public Accountants,

Mr CHAN Dit Lung, aged 66, is the Managing Director of Wellknown Plastic Material Ltd.
He has more than 39 years' experience in plastic trading. He was formerly a lecturer of
Hong Kong Plastics Technology Centre in Polytechnic University. He is now the Honorary
Lifetime Chairman of Hong Kong Plastic Material Suppliers Association, President of Hong
Kong Plastics Recycling Association, Executive President of The Professional Validation
Council of Hong Kong Industries Limited, Director of Hong Kong Plastics Technology
Centre and Honorary Chairman of Hong Kong Brands Protection Alliance. He has also

been awarded the Chief Executive’s Commendation for Community Service.

Mr CHING Yu Lung, aged 46, is a financial consultant. He has more than 24 years
of experience in auditing, corporate finance and accounting. Mr Ching had been the
executive director, finance director, company secretary and qualified accountant of the
Company. He also worked as the chief financial officer and company secretary of a
company listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He obtained a bachelor's
degree in business administration from The Chinese University of Hong Kong and an
executive master degree in business administration from Tsinghua University in 1992 and
2006, respectively. Mr Ching is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a

member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr NG Tat Ching, Ben, aged 61, is a Director and President of Ngai Hing Engineering
Plastic Materials Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., Ngai Hing
Engineering Plastic (Hong Kong) Limited, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic (Dongguan) Co.,
Ltd. and Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Materials (Shanghai) Co,, Ltd. and is responsible for
the overall business operations of the above mentioned group of companies. Mr Ben Ng
holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry (Major) and Statistics (Minor) from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong. He joined the Group as a co-founder and an executive director
of the above mentioned group of companies in 1997, and has over 35 years' experience
in plastic industries globally. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Ben Ng has held several key
positions in various multinational companies for engineering plastic materials sales and

product marketing in Asia Pacific regions.
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Mr WONG Chi Hang, Eric, aged 45, is the Director and General Manager of Ngai
Hing Hong Plastic Materials (Hong Kong) Limited and is responsible for the sales and
marketing in the Group's trading business. He holds a Bachelor degree in Chemistry
from The University of Hong Kong and a Master degree in Business Administration from
the University of South Australia. He joined the Group in 1994 and has over 22 years’

experience in sales & marketing.

Mr CHAN Ka Ho, aged 43, is the Chief Financial officer and Company Secretary of
the Group. He holds a Bachelor degree in Business Administration in Accounting and
Finance from The University of Hong Kong. He also holds a joint Master of Science
degree in Mathematics for Finance and Actuarial Science from City University of Hong
Kong and University of Paris-Dauphine, France. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (“FCCA”") and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“FCPA™). He is also a Chartered Financial Analyst charterholder
("CFA") and a Certified Financial Risk Manager (“FRM"). He has over 20 years’ experience
in auditing, finance and accounting and is responsible for the financial, treasury, information

technology, administration and human resources management of the Group.

Mr HUI Yan Kit, Sam, aged 43, is the General Manager of Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic
Materials Co.,, Limited and is responsible for sales and marketing of Colour Masterbatches
and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in Shanghai and other cities in Eastern
China. He holds a Bachelor degree in Arts from University of Toronto. He joined the
Group in 1998 and has over |8 years' experience in business management, sales &
marketing. Mr Hui Yan Kit, Sam is the son of Mr Hui Sai Chung and the brother of Mr Hui
Yan Lung, Geoffrey.

Mr HUI Yan Lung, Geoffrey, aged 42, is the General Manager of Dongguan Ngai Hing
Plastic Materials Limited and NHH Coltec Limited and is responsible for sales and
marketing of Colour Masterbatches and Functional Masterbatches for plastic industries in
Hong Kong, Guangdong and other cities in Southern China. He holds a Bachelor degree
with honors in Arts (Major in Economics) from Queen's University. He joined the Group
in 2004 and has over |6 years' experience in business management, sales & marketing. Mr
Hui Yan Lung, Geoffrey is the son of Mr Hui Sai Chung and the brother of Mr Hui Yan Kit,

Sam.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

| hereby announce the audited results of Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (“the
Company") and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”) for the year ended 30th June
2016. The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover of HK$1,506,063,000
(2015: HK$1,619,826,000) and a loss attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$26,492,000 (2015: profit of HK$25,225,000). Loss per share for the year were

HK7.18 cents (2015: eamnings per share of HK6.83 cents). To retain sufficient capital for
future business development, the Board of Directors (the “Board") does not recommend

the payment of a final dividend.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Chinese economy continued to face downward
pressure, while for the European Union, the Brexit referendum in June triggered economic
upheavals in the region and globally. These plus the persistently low oil price have affected
the price of raw materials for plastic products as well as the products themselves and
market demand weakened. As a result, the Group's business development was challenged.
For the year ended 30th June 2016, the Group's total turnover was HK$1,506,063,000,
representing a year-on-year drop of 7%. To cope with the challenging environment, the
Group continued to develop and sell products with higher profit margin, carefully select
quality customers and prudently manage inventory. As such, despite that there was a 6%
decrease in its total gross profit to HK$187,550,000, the Group was able to boost its

gross profit margin to 12.5% from 12.3% in the same period last year.

However, with the external economic environment remaining weak and labour and
transportation costs increasing in Mainland China, the Group's operating costs increased
during the year. Furthermore, affected by fluctuation in the exchange rate of RMB,
the Group recorded losses on forward foreign exchange contracts during the year.
Loss attributable to equity holders of the Company was HK$26,492,000 (2015: profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company of HK$25,225,000). Basic loss per share
were HK7.18 cents (2015: eamnings per share of HK6.83 cents).

To ensure the Group has sufficient capital for business development, the Board of

Directors does not recommend payment of a final dividend.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Regarding the colorants, pigments and compounded plastic resin business segment, with
customer demand for high value-added products remaining strong, the Group upheld
the strategy of focusing on developing products that bring higher profit margin and also
expanded into sectors with higher entry barriers such as smart electronic healthcare
products and medical application related packaging. Furthermore, increasing popularity in
handset use gives development potential to related technologies in areas including virtual
reality and augmented reality, the Group also expanded its clientele to cover handset
accessory related customers. As these new products have higher technological and quality
requirements, customers are generally willing to pay higher prices for them. In addition,
with the close cooperative relationship that the Group has with the International Colour
Alliance, the team dedicated to serving Eastern China continued to provide customers
in that region with a series of high quality automobile-related products and services to
help the Group grasp market opportunities in the locale. The products with higher gross
profit margin also gave overall gross profit margin growth a boost. Given the Chinese
government put football and other related sports into its national sport development
plans, presenting tremendous opportunities to sports related consumptions in China,
the Group continued to develop sporting gear and equipment related products and
the business made satisfactory performance. Moreover, boasting excellent technological
advantage, the Group continued to grow its high quality sanitary accessories clientele
in China and its Xiamen office continued to contribute profit from the business to the
Group. Although turnover of the segment declined by 10.5% to HK$340,231,000 against
the same period last year, the segmental gross profit margin grew by 1.8%, contributed by

stringent cost control measures adopted by the Group.

Impacted more markedly by the change in export sentiment in the US and Europe, the
tumnover of engineering plastics business decreased by a slight 3.3% to HK$181,768,000,
when compared with the corresponding period last year. However, with efforts of the
Group to transform its sales model starting to bear fruit, profit before taxation rose by
19.4% year-on-year. During the year, the segment was able to constantly meet customer
needs and find more high potential export customers through broadening its product
mix, including providing engineering plastics for food-related equipment and tools to
internationally-renowned food manufacturers, thereby brought profit contribution to the
Group. And, through adopting automated equipment, the segment was able to enhance
production efficiency and reduce labour costs, which translated into a 3.5% growth of its
overall gross profit margin. Also, matching the needs of domestic customers who undergo
business transformation, the Group continued to produce and sell metal substitutes for
kitchenware and automobiles during the year and recorded profit from the business.
The Southern China market performed rather well with the Dongguan office reporting
satisfactory performance. Armed with leading-edge product technology, the Group has
an outstanding competitive advantage, hence it believes it will continue to be a preferred
partner of famous domestic and overseas brands and be able to expand its customer

base.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

The plastics trading business was impacted by weak market demand as a result the
Chinese economy facing downward pressure. Tumover of the business was down by
6.3% to HK$981,194,000 and gross profit margin was flat when compared to the previous
corresponding period. The sluggish market sentiment commanded the Group to be
more cautious in selecting customers and to implement stringent credit control. Also,
the Group has been expanding its customer base in heavy industries such as automobile
manufacturers. However, the catastrophic explosion in the new Binhai area, Tianjin has
slowed down the securing of heavy industry customers in the Northern China region
by the Group to an extent. And, still in development stage, the Chongging sales office
targeting the Wester China market is expected to contribute revenue to the Group in
the near future. The Group believes at its consistent efforts to expand product mix and
with technological advantages and guided by the development strategy of focusing on high
profit margin products, it will be able to seize business opportunities in different regions in
China.

PROSPECTS

While oil prices are expected to remain stable this year, with the economy uncertainty
and consumption sentiment weak, the management is cautiously optimistic about the
Group's development prospects. The Group will keep implementing set development
strategies, focusing on developing high value-added products with higher margin and
strictly selecting well-reputed customers, plus resorting actively to different flexible
financing channels including onshore guarantee for offshore loan, cross—border capital
arrangement to counter the adverse external environment and lower overall financing

costs. It will also manage inventory carefully to help increase overall profitability.

The Group believes its top quality products will allow it to stand out against its peers
and gain the recognition of international brands, hence maintain relatively strong product
price bargaining power. The rigid demand for products in China still has huge growth
potential, which will enable the Group to develop its business in steady strides. Heeding
that, the Group has corresponding development strategy in place, entailing effort to
actively pursue opportunities to negotiate with international brands on cooperation and
stepping up expansion of the domestic market with a focus on products of rigid demand
and with higher profit margin. In addition, the Group will also effectively apply its strong
R&D capability to explore and produce products with market potential including medical
application products, as well as create new product categories and markets. During the
year, the Group discussed with other R&D organisations about cooperation in developing
new colorant products. At the same time, it will keep exploring, referring to and bringing
in dye-related production technologies from regions other than Europe, the US and Japan,

with the aim of diversifying its business to cover other profit-promising sectors.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
PROSPECTS (Continued)

On the cost control front, although there are uncertainties bearing on its business
including volatile oil prices and exchange rates, and constantly rising labour costs, the
Group will, as always, implement its robust business strategies, exercise prudence in
financial management to effectively control production costs and adopt suitable methods
to manage foreign exchange risk, making every effort to achieve its long-term sustainable
development. The Group is certain that, led by its professional management team with
years of experience in the industry, it will be able overcome different challenges and
dedicate efforts to explore and effectively evaluate every business opportunity, thus

ultimately generate the greatest returns for shareholders.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations with internally generated cashflow and banking
facilities provided by its principal bankers. As at 30th June 2016 the Group has available
aggregate banking facilities of approximately HK$531,529,000, of which approximately
HK$263,006,000 have been utilised and were secured by corporate guarantees issued
by the Company and legal charges on certain leasehold land and buildings, investment
properties, inventories and restricted bank deposits in The People's Republic of China and
Hong Kong owned by the Group (see Notes |5, 16, 17, 21 and 24 to the consolidated
financial statements). The Group’s cash and bank balances as at 30th June 2016
amounted to approximately HK$73,821,000. The Group’s gearing ratio as at 30th June
2016 was approximately 64.5%, based on the total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$280,843,000 and the shareholders’ funds of approximately HK$435,337,000.

Details of the Group’s capital commitments and contingent liabilities, and the Company's
contingent liabilities are disclosed in Notes 31, 36 and 3.1(d) to the consolidated financial

statements respectively.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group's borrowings and cash balances are primarily denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group's purchases were principally denominated in
US dollars. The Group closely monitors currency fluctuations and manages its exchange

risk by entering into forward exchange contracts from time to time.

At 30th June 2016, the Group had outstanding commitments in respect of forward REBEETRZIVERR - REBFIZINE
contracts in order to manage the Group’s exposure in foreign currencies from its BHEH - RZZ-—RNEXAZTH  RAR
operations as follows: ZEBEN 2 AENT
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR
Sell HK dollars for US dollars MEBTUBAET 561,600 2,269,800
Sell US dollars for HK dollars HEETUEAET — 15,600
Sell US dollars for Renminbi HEEXTAEAARY — 1,070,628

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 30th June 2016, the Group had approximately 722 full-time employees. The
Group's emolument policies are formulated on the performance of individual employees
and are reviewed annually. The Group has an incentive scheme which is geared to the
profit of the Group and the performance of its employees, as an incentive to motivate its
employees to increase their contribution to the Group. The Group also provides social
or medical insurance coverage, and provident fund scheme (as the case may be) to its

employees depending on the location of such employees.

APPRECIATION

l, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to
the Group's customers, suppliers and shareholders for their unfailing support, my fellow
directors, executives and staff for their hard work in the past year. The Group will, as
always, with prudence use its best endeavour to strive for its long-term development
and the best interest of the shareholders aiming at attaining more promising results in the

coming year.

HUI Sai Chung

Chairman

Hong Kong, 27th September 2016
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Report of the Directors
EFEERE

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the

year ended 30th June 201 6.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS
The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal activities of its

principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by segment is set out in Note 5 to

the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW
A fair review of the Group's business and the analysis of the Group's performance for the
year ended 30th June 2016 as well as prospects of the Group's business are provided in

the "Chairman’s Statement” on pages 7 to 12 of this Annual Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
There are a number of factors affecting the results and business operations of the Group,
some of which are inherent in the market and some are due to external environment.

Major risks and uncertainties are summarized as follows:

(i) Volatility of economic climate in The People's Republic of China (the “PRC") and

Hong Kong, which is closely related to consumption thereto.

In order to mitigate the impact of a weakening economy of the PRC, the Group
is continuing to expand the overseas markets. The Group continues to take a
cautious approach in steering the Group forward, and recognizes the need to

sustain sales momentum.
(i) Credit risk in the event of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations.

The Group maintains a defined credit policy. An ageing analysis of trade debtors
is prepared on a regular basis and is closely monitored to minimize any credit risk

associated with receivables.

The Group's other financial risks and uncertainties are set out in Note 3 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
FPARTICULARS OF IMPORTANT EVENTS
No important events affecting the Group have occurred since the end of the financial

year.

FINANCIAL KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Certain financial key performance indicators which complement and supplement the
financial disclosures are set out in the “Chairman’s Statement” and “Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements” on pages 7 to 12 and 48 to 152, respectively, of this
Annual Report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE, AND COMPLIANCE
WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group takes its corporate social responsibility to heart, and is fully committed to
making a difference for its staff, the community and the common good. During the year
there are a wide range of activities and campaigns held to treasure the staff, community

and the environment.

The Group's operations are mainly carried out by the Company's subsidiaries in Hong
Kong and the PRC while the Company itself was incorporated in Bermuda and is listed on
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™). During the year ended
30th June 2016 and up to the date of this Directors’ Report, the Group has complied with

all relevant laws and regulations in the above-mentioned jurisdictions.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH TS KEY STAKEHOLDERS INCLUDING

EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

() Employees
Recognising that human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group,
the Group provides a variety of benefits, talent trainings and development for

employees.

(i) Customers
It is the Group's mission to satisfy different customers’ needs and continues to
contribute to the wellbeing of the public by providing plastic materials which
suit the customers' requirements, which include their social responsibility and

sustainability.
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Report of the Directors
EFEERE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

(i) Key suppliers
The Group has developed long-standing relationships with a number of suppliers
and taken great care to ensure that they share our belief in good quality and ethics.
The Group prudently select suppliers and requires all of them to comply with our

social and environmental responsibility guidelines.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement

on page 41.

At a meeting held on 25th February 2016, the Directors resolved not to declare any

interim dividend for the six months ended 3 |st December 2015,

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the year are set out

in Notes 27 and 37 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in

Note |5 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in Note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30th June 2016, the reserves of the Company available for distribution, comprising
the contributed surplus and retained eamings, amounted to approximately HK$64,887,000
(2015: HK$68,769,000).

Under The Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), a company may not
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus, if there are
reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; (ii) the realisable value of the company's
assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital

and share premium account.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws and there
was no restrictions against such rights under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the

Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

financial years is set out on page 153.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company's listed securities

during the year.
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Report of the Directors
ESERE

SHARE OPTIONS
On 22nd November 2012, the Company has adopted a share option scheme (the

“Scheme”) and terminated the share option scheme adopted by the Company on 5th

December 2002. Under the terms of the New Scheme, the Directors may, at their

discretion, invite eligible participants to take up Share Options to subscribe for the shares

of the Company subject to the terms and conditions stipulated therein.

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

()

(i)

(i)

Purpose
The purpose of the Scheme is to enable the Group to grant Share Options to

eligible participants as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group.

Eligible participants

Any employee (whether full time or part time, including any executive director but
excluding any non-executive director) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;
and the persons to whom the Directors may extend an offer to take up Share
Options as referred to in paragraph (2) of Appendix Il of the circular issued by the
Company on |8th October 2012.

Maximum number of shares

The maximum number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding Share Options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue from time to time. No Share Option may be granted
under the Scheme if such limit is exceeded. The total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme as at the date of the annual report is 36,920,000, which
is 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as of that date.

The maximum entitlement for any one qualifying participant is that the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the Share Options
granted to each qualifying participant under the Scheme and any other option
schemes (including exercised and outstanding Share Options) in any |2-month

period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

()

)

i)

(vii)

Option period

In respect of any particular Share Option, such period the Board of Directors (the
“Board") may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall not
expire more than |0 vears from the date on which a Share Option is granted and

accepted by the grantee.

Amount payable on application or acceptance
An offer of the grant of an option shall remain open for acceptance for a period
of 21 days from the date of grant. A nominal consideration of HK$ 1 is payable on

acceptance of the grant of a Share Option.

Subscription price

The exercise price in respect of any particular option shall be (i) the closing price of
the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange daily quotations sheet
on the date of offer for the grant of a Share Option, (i) the average price of the
shares for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer for the
grant of a Share Option or (iii) the nominal value of the share (whichever is the

greater).

The remaining life of the New Scheme

The Board of Directors shall be entitled at any time within 0 years between 22nd
November 2012 and 2Ist November 2022 to offer the grant of an option to any
qualifying participants.

No Share Options were granted or exercised during the year.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2016 are set out in Note

34 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTEREST CAPITALISED
No interest has been capitalised by the Group during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman)
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong (Deputy Chairman and Managing Director)
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony (Vice Chairman)
Mr LAl Kam Wah (Deputy Managing Director)
(Resigned on | Ith June 2016)
Madam LIU Sau Lai
Mr NG Chi Ming
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul *
Mr CHAN Dit Lung *
Mr CHING Yu Lung *

* Independent Non-executive Directors

All of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Company's Bye-laws.

Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, Mr NG Chi Ming and Mr CHAN Dit Lung retire by rotation in
accordance with clause 87 of the Company's Bye-laws and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election.

Mr LAl Kam Wah resigned on | Ith June 2016 as executive director of the Company. Mr
LAl Kam Wah has confirmed that he has no disagreement with the Board and nothing
relating to the affairs of the Company needed to be brought to the attention of the
shareholders of the Company.

In order to comply with the code provision A4.3 as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), separate
resolution should be set out for shareholders of the Company to approve the further
appointment of Mr CHAN Dit Lung as Independent Non-executive Director at the

forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The fundamental policy of the Group's remuneration and incentive scheme is to link
total compensation for senior management with the achievement of annual and long-
term performance goals. By providing total compensation at competitive industry levels,
the Group seeks to attract, motivate and retain key executives essential to its long-
term success. Senior management incentive scheme includes an equity component that
is designed to align the long-term interest of management with those of shareholders.
The remuneration package comprises of annual directorship fees, salaries, discretionary

bonuses and incentive scheme.

The Independent Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly
represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various committee meetings.

The remuneration package represents annual directorship fees.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries, which
is not determinable by the employer within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business to which the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), every Director is entitled
under the Company's Articles of Association to be indemnified out of the assets of the
Company against all costs, charges, expenses, losses and liabilities which he or she may
sustain or incur in or about the execution or discharge of his or her duties. To the extent
permitted by such Ordinance, the Company has taken out insurance against the liability
and costs associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought against
directors of companies in the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION

As at 30th June 2016, the interest and short positions of each Director and chief executive
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFQ")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code") contained in the Listing Rules were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company at 30th June 2016
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Number of shares of the Company beneficially held

BRRAEZADARGEE
Personal Corporate Family Other
interests interests interests interests
Name of Directors EEHAR BARES ZEER REER HitEs
Mr HUI Sai Chung FaueStes Long positions #F& 15,787,600 202,721,500 (a) — =
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong AR A Long positions #F & 19,850,400 198,803,500 (b) — —
Madam LIU Sau Lai BAEBLLT Long positions i & 1,423,000 — — ©
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

Notes:

@

BEERRETHRAERARRDR
HEMBEBZIEREARESZ
ERR/SREE)

AT
196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit Limited (“Good Benefit”), a company in @  FZERMHHTZ 1967215008 T5E Good Benefit
which Ever Win Limited (“Ever Win") holds a 45.1% interest (Note (c)). In addition, 6,000,000 Limited ([ Good Benefit]) #F % ° Ever Win
shares are held by Ever Win directly. Limited ([ Ever Win])$§8 Good Benefit B2 Z
M+ R — R (MR () o btk + 6,000,000
FRAR 7 F8 Ever Win EHEFS A
50,001 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Ever Win are held by Mr HUI Sai Chung. Ever Win BIREE | A1yt &EAH 50,001 B
Mr HUI Sai Chung and his spouse further own 33,957 and 5 class A non-convertible redeemable AL ERE - FHREERARBS D
preferred shares of no par value in Ever Win respectively. RIFEA Ever Win AREEBE A KRB RIE
FERRAR 33,957 RIS IR
196,721,500 of these shares are held by Good Benefit, a company in which Evergrow Company by ZEFRMH 21967215000 T3 B Good
Limited (“Evergrow”) holds a 45.1% interest (Note (c)). In addition, 2,082,000 shares are held by Benefiti A © Evergrow Company Limited
Evergrow directly. ([Evergrow]) %8 Good Benefit B4 2 U+ H
E— w3 () « oM+ 2,082,000 8 B 7
F Evergrow B 154 o
50,000 ordinary shares of one Canadian dollar each in Evergrow are held by Mr HUI Kwok Kwong. Evergrow & IR & | I 7T 2 & 3 AR £ 50,000
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong further owns 30,823 class A non-convertible redeemable preferred shares of BRAFELEERF FERXEERES
no par value in Evergrow. Evergrow AREEETT KA EEELERN
30823/ °
The beneficial interests of the Directors in the share capital of Good Benefit, which held () EZHEGood Benefit(RZE—REXNA=ZT
196,721,500 shares of the Company as at 30th June 2016, are as follows: BEAADE 196721 500 REH ) BAZ B
‘R
Number Percentage
of shares of holding
Name of Directors EEns RGEE BRESL
Mr HUI Sai Chung Eaudy 4510 45.1%
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong AR KA 4510 45.1%
Madam LIU Sau Lai BAEBZT 80 0.8%
Others Htt 900 9.0%
10,000 100.0%
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATION (Continued)

As at 30th June 2016, the following Directors owned interests in non-voting deferred
shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited, which are subject to an option granted

to Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited to acquire the said non-voting deferred

Report of the Directors
EEERE

BEERRETHAERARFDR
HEMBEB ZBEREARES 2
ERER/SREE)

RZEBE-—R"EFAA=TH TIHEZHARA
ZERHARAAERFZEET KD #ES -
&% 2 7 ¥ 2 % T Ngai Hing (International)

shares. Company Limited A] i B il 1% ZRRIEE R
ZEhE o
Number of non-voting
deferred shares held
FEERREECROEE
Personal Other
interests interests
Name of Directors EEpE BAESR Hipfg s
Mr HUI Sai Chung b 200,000 50,000(i)
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong BN A 200,000 50,000(ii)
Notes: Mis -
(i) These shares are held by Ever Win. ()  ZERHBEer WinkEE -

(i) These shares are held by Evergrow.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in the subsidiaries of the
Company held by certain Directors of the Company in trust for the Group as at 30th June
2016, none of the Directors and chief executives have any beneficial or non-beneficial
interests in the share capital of the Company and associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

) 1

(i)  ZERGHAEvergowFE ©

BREXHEBRAAAETESUEEIAR
AEBREADAIETHEBLAREARD
o RZE-REXNAZTRH REBLHHE
BRI 32IGRTEFE 2 LM SRR BT
ﬁ?%ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬂ&%i%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁ'xﬁ

Be{TRABRARE RIEEZE(AEE
%ﬁ%ﬂ EXVEREIRE) 2 RAR R ES
TARBEEFHERNBTREBZERRIE
o 1

_\tﬁ*%

E\\
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Report of the Directors

EFERE
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND/OR EERBRTRAERARAN
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES HEMEBRERRARES 2

AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED BER/BRBE#E)
CORPORATION (Continued)
Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Options” above, bR Eai[ BB AR AE | —BRPTAISN -

(@)  at no time during the year was the Company, its holding company or any of its @ REAFEETMERA  KA2F - HER

subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executives NRISHEFAMBARLELETE
of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or Az REARAVESTHIZSTHA
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate; and BAHEEERDRISEMEMEAES

ZBINHESMER - R

(b)  none of the Directors, chief executives, their spouses or children under the age b)) BEZ HZRTBRABE HEGHTN

of 18 had been granted any right to subscribe for shares in or debentures of the BATZ FUBEER TARBALA
Company, or exercised any such right. Rin ks 2 A - BT FHEN -
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT FERRREADATAREZEZRAR
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

At 30th June 2016, the register of substantial shareholders required to be kept under BREXFBRBEERES I REXAT
Section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that the Company had not been notified of any ~ REBEFHEHRAIE 336 EEXVEMFEL TR
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company's BRELMABT ARABEZEFMALR

issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and chief executives as disclosed “E-RNERAZTEBERARRAEEITRA
above. BOZAHA PG RKR 2 BA -
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS EEEN

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any FRUEIT VS FAEEANEHRARAIESZE
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the HIENEEHD 2 ERRITHEH

year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group's major suppliers are

as follows:
The largest supplier 26%
Five largest suppliers combined 56%

The aggregate percentage of sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers is less
than 10% of the Group's total sales for the year ended 30th June 2016 and therefore no

additional disclosure with regard to the major customers is made.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) had an interest in the

major suppliers noted above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board of Directors and the
Company's auditor in matters coming within the scope of the group audit. It also reviews
the effectiveness of the external audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation. The
Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr HO
Wai Chi, Paul, Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu Lung. The Audit Committee has
reviewed with management the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including a review of the

annual financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2016 with the Directors.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors, at least 25% of the total issued share capital of the Company was held by
the public as at the date of this report.

Report of the Directors
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FERFRMLER
AEBZEEHERMECRBEI LI
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RAEER 26%
hAFAEERE & 56%

AEERAAZEFRBEE_T-—RFAA=TH
FFEEREZEFHERAD L IRAKB B
ERANZT  HRBBIBEXZTIERP
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HERFEEIHOREE - BREEGH=A
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Report of the Directors

- P

EETHE

AUDITOR BB

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retires and, AUBREECHEERKESHMEBHME

being eligible, offer itself for re-appointment. % BREMERERENAERBEEEE
B

On behalf of the Board KEESE

HUI Sai Chung FE

Chairman A

Hong Kong, 27th September 2016 BE —_T-R"FNAZTtH
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Company is committed to the establishment of good corporate governance practices
and procedures which serve as an important element of risk management throughout the
growth and expansion of the Company. The Company emphasises on maintaining and

carrying out sound, solid and effective corporate governance principles and structures.

The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report to the Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules (the “CG Code") throughout the year ended 30th June 2016, except for

the deviation as mentioned below.

According to the code provision A2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer (chief executive for CG Code) should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Up to the date of this annual report, the board
(the “Board") of directors (the "Directors”) of the Company has not appointed any
individual to be the chief executive. The roles of the chief executive have been performed
collectively by all the executive Directors, including the chairman, of the Company. The
Board considers that this arrangement allows contributions from all executive Directors
with different expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company's policies and
strategies. Going forward, the Board will periodically review the effectiveness of this
arrangement and considers appointing an individual as chief executive when it thinks

appropriate.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix |0 of the Listing
Rules as its own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transaction. The Company
has made specific enquiries to all Directors and all Directors confirmed they have

complied with the required standard of dealings set out therein during the year.

TGRS

EEERER
ARRBNRIRHEREAERREF &
BARRENERT ZFRAREFARRE
BRERLR - ARRZEELFLUTER
RREBEMNRHERERATRLRE -

BRTIXAAR RSN BEZF—RFNA
=tHLEFEA  ARF— EL#J:FI? 75 11 it
HI(EEERTADKEXRERBRE N T

R D) k5l 2 A i A 5T RUERDC o

REBETAGRIXEALIGE - TR RITHAR R
BTRIESR)ZBREESH  TRE—ARK
RE-BEEAFERSEY ARAER(E
2])/ EFQ(EFS ) HAREENALE
ETHAE - TRAHZBERARENRE
HTEZ(BRIFAREL EFERR

ZRFBZURETRERONTESLRR
o MAEHATARAZBRRRE - 817

EAEEFZ - REXRKR  EEZHETHR
ZEEZRY REERBERBEZTITHE
ﬁ o

BETETESRS

ARBEHRMNLTRE JMT@E”’IOF)’T%EZT?Z@?H'J
ERESETEFIH IBTER - KD

MEEESFLETER ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬂﬁéﬁ
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EEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’ attendance

The Company's Board has a balance of skills and experience and a balanced composition

of executive and non-executive Directors. There is no financial, business, family or other

material/relevant relationship between Board members. The Board conducts meetings on

a regular basis and on an ad-hoc basis, as required by business needs. During the year, the

Board held a total of five regular board meetings, eight ad-hoc board meetings and one

general meeting. The composition of the Board and attendance of the Directors are set

Exg

EZEHM EFEERREFHENEY
ARENESEABYENRTONER  ME
PHRTEREFHPTEENESTRTOE -
EFENB AT EEMME BE  KEX
HEER /R ZBR - EFEUEHAER
SEERAGRIERLARTER  RER

EFAABRTRAEHESS S  \RE

out below: HEFEEE R —ARRAE - EZ8EULR
ESHREHBNT
No. of No. of
No. of ad-hoc general
regular meetings meetings
meetings Attendance #7 Attendance B3 Attendance
Attendants H % & flgrg HERE SFRE HERKH KX8RE HERHY
Executive Directors: BITEE -
Mr HUI Sai Chung (Chairman) AL (FE) 5 5 8 8
Mr HUI Kwok Kwong BN KA
(Deputy Chairman and (BIEE#
Managing Director) EFHHE) 5 5 8 8
Dr WONG Chi Ying, Anthony BETEBL
(Vice Chairman) (BIELE) 5 5 8 8
Mr LAl Kam Wah RBELE
(Deputy Managing Director) (BIZEFHEHE)
(Resigned on 1 1th June 2016) (RZFE—NF
NAT—A#HE) 5 5 8 8 ! |
Madam LIU Sau Lai BAEBLL 5 4 8 8 | |
Mr NG Chi Ming RERALE 5 5 8 8 | |
Independent Non-executive Directors: BUHHTEE -
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul FESEE 5 5 8 0 | |
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIKBESE & 5 5 8 0 | |
Mr CHING Yu Lung BmELE 5 5 8 0 | |
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Comporsition of the Board, number of Board meetings and Directors’ attendance
(Continued)

The balanced board composition ensured strong independence exists across the Board
and has met Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules to have at least one-third of its members
comprising independent non-executive Directors. At least one of the independent non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or financial
management expertise. The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 4 to 5
to the annual report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills, expertise, experience and

qualifications.

The independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a term subject to

retirement by rotation in accordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence from the three
independent non-executive Directors in according with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Board has assessed their independence and concluded that all the independent non-

executive Directors are independent within the definition of the Listing Rules.

Role and Function
The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Group to the executive Directors
and senior management, while reserve certain key matters for its approval. The principal

functions of the Board are;

. to establish the strategic direction for the development of the Company and set

the objectives of the management;

. to approve annual budgets, major funding proposal and investment proposals;

J to decide on matters such as annual and interim results, major transactions,

directors appointment, and dividend and accounting policies; and

0 to oversee the processes for evaluating the adequacy of internal controls, risk

management, financial reporting and compliance.

TGRS
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EEELRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The members of the Board are responsible for preparing the financial statements of the
Company and of the Group. The financial statements are prepared on a going concern
basis and give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 30th June 2016, and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended.
In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 30th June 2016, the members
of the Board have selected appropriate accounting policies and, apart from those new
and amended accounting policies as disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30th June 2016, have applied them consistently with
previous financial periods. Judgments and estimates that have been made are prudent and

reasonable.

During the year ended 30th June 2016, the management provided all members of the
Board with monthly updates in accordance with the code provision C.1.2 of the CG

Code.

The reporting responsibilities of the external auditor are set out on pages 39 to 40.

Continuing Professional Development

All Directors, namely, Mr HUI Sai Chung, Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, Dr WONG Chi Ying,
Anthony, Mr LAl Kam Wah (Resigned on | Ith June 2016), Madam LIU Sau Lai, Mr
NG Chi Ming, Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul, Mr CHAN Dit Lung and Mr CHING Yu Lung
have participated in continuous professional development by engaging in business
activities beneficial to the Company in their respective fields, including attending seminar,
workshops, conference and courses offered by professional bodies and self-studying, to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution to

the Board remains informed and relevant.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable training to all Directors for
their continuous professional development. During the year ended 30th June 2016 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company has arranged to provide the Directors

with briefing on the amendments to the Listing Rules and self-studying materials.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities
The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the liabilities of the
Directors that may arise out the corporate activities, which has been complied with the

CG Code. The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.
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Corporate Governance Report

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Composition

A nomination committee of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) was
established on 26th March 2012 with written terms of reference in accordance with
the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Nomination Committee consists of all
independent non-executive Directors and an executive Director. The composition and

attendance record of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

TGRS

REZEE
ARARMRAZEE(REZESIR_F
—ZHEZAZTRBREBRAREOBES
BN - REZESHERBUFNTEER
—BRTERAK - AARIEELEAT

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HiEE HESERY,BRE HE=R
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) NEEEE(FEELE) 2/2 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRUkEELE 2 100%
Mr CHING Yu Lung RIngESL & 22 100%
Mr HUI Sai Chung Faugtses 22 100%

Role and Function

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board (including the skills, knowledge and experience) on a regular
basis and make recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed changes;
identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for
directorships; assessing the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors. The Nomination
Committee would review the Board's composition from time to time where Board
diversity would be considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and education background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,

knowledge and length of services.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year to assess the structure, size and
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 30th June 2016 to review the structure, size and composition (including the

skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board.

ARRBE
REAZECARTHRIESENRE AR
FAR(BERM - MBENRER)  LHEM
REEERERSRLEBR  BAEABER
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EEELRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised on 26th
March 2012 for the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) in
accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee consists
of all independent non-executive Directors. The composition and attendance record of

the Audit Committee are as follows:

ERZES

Pl
ARRRBBRIFTZBEMBEE 2 ARARNR
RZEG([BERZEG ) L BEGEEERN =T
— A+ BEH -ERZEEHE
BUFATESEN - BRZEBGZHEMRE
[EMCERINT -

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants HiEE HESERY,BRE HEE

Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) NEEEE(FEELE) 3/3 100%

Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRUkEELE 313 100%

Mr CHING Yu Lung RIngESL & 33 100%
Role and Function AERBE

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are to ensure the objectivity and credibility
of financial reporting and internal control procedures as well as to maintain an appropriate

relationship with the external auditor of the Company.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are aligned with the recommendations
set out in “A Guide for Effective Audit Committees” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and Listing Rules. Given below are the main duties of the

Audit Committee:

(@)  to consider the appointment of the external auditor and any questions of its

resignation or dismissal;

(b)  to discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature and

scope of the audit;
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EEEERE

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued) ERZEES(#)
Role and Function (Continued) AERBE (&)
() to review the half-year and annual financial statements before submission to the  EREFERIX+FERFREHBEHREX

Board, focusing particularly on: RISEITEE - RIS E THIHIE

() any changes in accounting policies and practices; () EFRRREBNEREL

(i) major judgmental areas; iy FBREEFEHNM ;

(i) significant adjustments resulting from audit; (iy ABZMERNEAFE

(iv)  the going concern assumptions and any qualifications; (v) FESENRIREMREZR

(v)  compliance with accounting standards; BT ETEAMER

—
<

=
d

(vi)  compliance with Listing Rules and legal requirements in relation to financial (vi) BTFETRRECEBRERE
reporting; and HYER © &

(d) to discuss problems and reservations arising from the audits, and any matters d) (WARB EEBREIESHERT)

the external auditor may wish to discuss (in the absence of management where AmAERIEELNRABENRE E
necessary). R VAR Al I A 0 A 75 2 5 R Y $
e
For the year ended 30th June 2016, the Audit Committee met three times, in particular, ~ RBE-T—RNFRNA=THIFE  BZZ
to review and discuss the followings: BELR{T=REH  UBHBEHARARAT
£E:

+  the auditing and financial reporting matters; s RERMBHREEE

0 the appointment of external auditor; * ZEIMNBRZEAN

0 the establishment of internal control system; and O B NIRRT

. the interim results and the annual financial statements. J PHIRERFEMB®RE

Each member of the Audit Committee has unrestricted access to the auditors and all EEZ BTN 8 AR Mz A &
senior staff of the Group. AEERMERRBERRER -
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EEELRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Company has formulated written terms of reference which were revised on 26th
March 2012 for the remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee") in accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchange. The
Remuneration Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors and
an executive Director. The composition and attendance record of the Remuneration

Committee are as follows:

FHZESS

LN - B A ok - S NG F
WZEg((HFMEZES ) cREREER_-F
—ZE-AZT R BEH - HFMEREEh={
BUFATESFRMUATEZAN - HHZ
Be @R RFECsm T

Number of meetings Attendance
attended/Total percentage
Attendants HEE HESRREBRE HE®
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) NEELE(ZEELE) 4/4 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRUEEEE 4/4 100%
Mr CHING Yu Lung gL L 4/4 100%
Mr HUI Sai Chung Eausibtes 4/4 100%
Role and Function AERBE
The Remuneration Committee is responsible for ensuring formal and transparent ZERRERREARAEHE 2 HMK

procedures for developing remuneration policies and making recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of the individual executive Directors and senior
management. This includes benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation payments,
including any compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment.
It takes into consideration on factors such as salaries paid by comparable companies, time

commitment and responsibilities of Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to assess the performance
and review the annual salaries and bonus of the senior executives. The Remuneration
Committee held four meetings during the year ended 30th June 2016 to review the terms
of reference of the Remuneration Committee and the remuneration packages of the

Directors and the senior management of the Group.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year, the nature of the audit and non-audit services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers, the auditor of the Company, and the relevant fee paid and

payable by the Company for such services are as follows:

TGRS

REAME

RNER  RAAGZEEME LR KBS EB
PR 2 BRLFBRRYE - MARAIRZE
BRBENNMEN 2 ABRERNOT :

HK$
BT
Audit services for the Group RAKBRMZEZRY 2,163,000
Non-audit services including; BRI BE
— review of interim results —BHRHEE 268,000
— taxation services for the Group — RAKBERM 2 HIBRY 309,000
— agreed upon procedures on the Group’s —AEERFRENMZATRF
annual results announcement 22,000
Total B 2,762,000

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE PEBLEES
Composttion A
A corporate governance committee of the Company (the “Corporate Governance ARBINTEETAZES([MEERRES])
Committee) was established on 26th March 2012 with written terms of reference in R-E——F=B-+,"BARESFUETHE
accordance with the CG Code. The Corporate Governance Committee consists of all BHEKY - PEERTECHIEBYIEH
independent non-executive Directors. The composition and attendance record of the TESBAR  EAREEELEDT
Corporate Governance Committee are as follows:

Number of meetings Attendance

attended/Total percentage

Attendants & HEGRRY BRY HifE =
Mr HO Wai Chi, Paul (Committee Chairman) MEExEE (FEELE) 22 100%
Mr CHAN Dit Lung BRIKBER & 22 100%
Mr CHING Yu Lung TRINESLE 22 100%
Role and Function AERBE
The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing and reviewing PEERLRECAERRENBRIAAEBECEE

the policies and practices on corporate governance of the Group and making
recommendations to the Board; reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management; reviewing and monitoring
the Group's policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any)
applicable to employees and Directors; and reviewing the Group's compliance with the

CG Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report of the Company.

RANBRRERTAEFEREER R R
EREENSRERABNEIRSEEEE
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EXNBRLER  BR R RERERR
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RBERNRE
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Corporate Governance Report
EEELRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE (Continued)

Role and Function (Continued)

The Corporate Governance Committee meets at least once a year to review the
corporate governance functions. The Corporate Governance Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 30th June 2016 to review the corporate governance
policy in the Group and recommend the training arrangement on corporate governance

to the employees of the Group.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of internal controls and for reviewing its
effectiveness. The management of the Company has established a set of comprehensive
policies, standards and procedures in areas of operational, financial and risk controls
for safeguarding assets against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining proper
accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability of financial information to achieve a

satisfactory level of assurance against the likelihood of the occurrence of fraud and errors.

For the purpose of further enhancing the risk management and internal control systems,
the Company has engaged an external consultant to carry out an on-going project to
conform the compliance with the revised CG Code. The Board of Directors has reviewed
the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Company and its subsidiaries with

no material issues noted.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr CHAN Ka Ho (“Mr Chan") was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
on Ist January 2007. In the opinion of the Board, Mr Chan possesses the necessary
qualifications and experience, and is capable of performing the functions of a company
secretary. Mr Chan is the secretary of the Board and various Board committees including
audit committee, remuneration committee, Corporate Governance Committee and

nomination committee.

During the year ended 30th June 2016, Mr Chan has complied with Rule 3.29 of the

Listing Rules by taking no less than |5 hours of relevant professional training.
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Corporate Governance Report

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The Group uses several formal channels to ensure fair disclosure and comprehensive
and transparent reporting of its performance and activities. Enquiries and suggestions
from shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) or investors are welcomed, and
enquiries from Shareholders may be put to the Board through the following channels to

the company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”):

I by mail to the Company's head office at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Center,
|0 Wo Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong;

2. by telephone at telephone number (852) 2693-1663;
3. by fax at fax number (852) 2694-0877; or
4, by email at info@nhh.com.hk.

Annual and interim reports are printed and sent to all shareholders. Announcements are
posted on the Company's corporate website http://www.nhh.com.hk. Constantly being
updated in a timely manner, the website also contains additional information on the

Group's business activities.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend general meetings to ensure a high

level of accountability and to stay informed of the Group's strategy and goals.

The Company keeps shareholders informed of the procedure for voting by poll in
all circulars to shareholders which are from time to time despatched to shareholders
together with notices of general meetings of the Company. The Company has taken
steps to ensure compliance with the requirements about voting by poll contained in the
Listing Rules and the constitutional documents of the Company. The Board attends the
Annual General Meetings to answer shareholders” questions. Poll results are published on
the website of the Stock Exchange and are posted on the Company's corporate website

shortly after the meetings.

TGRS
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT (Continued)

According to the Company's bye-laws, members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting the requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of

Section 74(3) of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person (the “Candidate”) for election as a
Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit a written notice (the “Notice”) at the
Company's head office in Hong Kong at Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre, 10 Wo
Shing Street, Fo Tan, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Notice (i) must include the
personal information of the Candidate as required by Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
and his/her contact details; and (i) must be signed by the Shareholder concerned including
the information/documents to verify the identity of the Shareholder and signed by the
Candidate indicating his/her willingness to be elected and consent of publication of his/her
personal data. The period for lodgement of the Notice shall commence on the day after
the dispatch of the notice of general meeting and end no later than seven days prior to
the date of such general meeting. In order to ensure the Shareholders have sufficient time
to receive and consider the proposal of election of the Candidate as a Director without
adjourning the general meeting, Shareholders are urged to submit and lodge the Notice
as soon as practicable, say at least fifteen business days prior to the date of the general

meeting appointed for such election.

The Board has established a shareholders communication policy on 26th March 2012
and will review it on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness to comply with the code
provision E.1.4 of the CG Code.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

i

pwec

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Ngai Hing Hong Company
Limited (the “Company") and its subsidiaries set out on pages 4| to 152, which comprise
the consolidated balance sheet as at 30th June 2016, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due

to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents

of this report.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the

overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as at 30th June 2016, and of their
financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in compliance with

the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27th September 2016
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Consolidated Income Statement

mEWER

For the year ended 30th June 2016 BiZ =F—~NENA=1HIFFE

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt TET TAT
Revenue Wk 5 1,506,063 1,619,826
Cost of sales HEKA 8 (1,318513)  (1,420687)
Gross profit EM 187,550 199,139
Other income H A A 6 5,594 5318
Other (losses)/gains, net Hith (B518), Wz — 558 7 (13,053) 18,370
Distribution costs 2 SERAR 8 (79,744) (76,358)
Administrative expenses TBX i 8 (104,882) (103,012)
Operating (loss)/profit e (BE),w i (4,535) 43457
Finance income B s e 1,565 2,249
Finance costs BM%ER (11,098) (11,136)
Finance costs, net B ER—$8E 9 (9,533) (8,887)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRBLAT (B51E) s A (14,068) 34,570
Income tax expense MIEX 10 (11,297) (7,566)
(Loss)/profit for the year AE (BB, & (25,365) 27,004
Attributable to: ATNALTRELS :
Equity holders of the Company NAIIRER (26,492) 25,225
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 1,127 1,779
(25,365) 27,004
(Loss)/eamings per share for (loss)/profit attributable AEERARRREN(EB),/
to equity holders of the Company during the w2 Bk (ER), &
year (expressed in HK cent per share) (A=)
— Basic and diluted —EARREE 12 (7.18) 683

The notes on pages 48 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F48ZE I ENMETAGAMNBERERNER

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

FEaHkm=ER

For the year ended 30th June 2016 BLE =F—~NFENA=1HIFFE

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
(Loss)/profit for the year RE(B1R), S H (25,365) 27,004
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hirkza (B18) /e
[tems that may be reclassified subsequently to income statement: e wETs Bz RER2ER
Currency translation differences b X = HE (32,174) I
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the year KEHMERA (BR), (32,174) I
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the year AEGE(BR)/ WalE (57,539) 27015
Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to: RE (BB WaBEEEr
— Equity holders of the Company —NERR (58,273) 25236
— Non-controlling interests — IRt R 734 1,779
(57,539) 27,015

The notes on pages 48 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial F48E 152 BT RERAKE M B RER

statements. = ’5‘% %B 1/7} °
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEEERRAR

As at 30th June 2016 —F—ENH=+H

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt £ TR TERT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FMEBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BE KRR 15 118,172 132,642
Leasehold land and land use rights ME i e T3P A 16 22,397 21510
Investment properties REME |7 106,050 105,075
Intangible assets BV EE 18 — —
Available-for-sale financial asset ARHEMBEE 19 2,000 2,000
Deposit for acquisition of land use right Wb REEE — 3273
Deferred income tax assets BRERIEAE 29 6,052 5990
Prepayments for property, mE - BERREEEE
plant and equipment and renovation costs SCINE 1,339 2463
256,010 272,953
Current assets MENEE
Inventories & 21 228,571 287,785
Trade and bills receivables BIRBF R ERER 22 248,086 276511
Other receivables, prepayments and deposits HEKR - BRREES 17,347 33,149
Income tax recoverable A[ eI 38 248 846
Derivative financial instruments fTHEEMIA 23 = N
Restricted bank deposits ZBR &I RITER 24 23,256 =
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHEER 24 73,821 88,048
591,329 686,450
Total assets BEE 847,339 959,403
EQUITY 1
Capital and reserves attributable to the NGV N
Company's equity holders Kt
Share capital R 26 36,920 36,920
Share premium BRARE 26 62,466 62,466
Other reserves HinfAE 27 49,903 81,477
Retained earnings RE & 27 286,048 316232
435,337 497,095
Non-controlling interests IR IR 20,384 21,336
Total equity EnRsE 455,721 518431
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

HEBERR/R

As at 30th June 2016 —E—ENH=+H

2016 2015
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
P T TER TET
LIABILITIES =0
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred income tax liabilities EERBEEE 29 6,151 5976
Current liabilities mEBE
Trade payables BHRMAR 25 72,875 71819
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HtENR  EHGT e RERER 24,079 26,24
Bank borrowings RITIEE 28 280,843 317,469
Derivative financial instruments PTEERMIA 23 584 14,554
Income tax payable JERHIE 7,086 4913
385,467 434996
Total liabilities wamE 391,618 440972
Total equity and liabilities mrEaRaE 847,339 959,403

The notes on pages 48 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial

statements.

The financial statements on pages 41 to |52 were approved by the Board of Directors on

27th September 2016 and were signed on its behalf

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong

ATt SRR

Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
EY BT EREFELE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEESRBEHR

For the year ended 30th June 2016 #Z =F—NFNA=1HILFE

Attributable to equty holders of the Company
RARRELESH

Other reserves

Aol

Avallable-for-

sale financial  Exchange

Share asset reserve  fluctuation Non-
Share Share option Cptdl  Recaion  AREE reserve  Retaned  controling
apita premium reserve reserve e AHEE i) eamings interests Total

B REEE BRERE AABR  ERRR Bl REER  REEN EMER 2]
HKOD  HKSOO0  HKSO0  RKSODD  HKSOD  HKSOMD  HKSO0  HKSOMD  HKSDO  HKSO00
Thn  TAn TR TR TEr  TAm  TRr TR TEn TR

At IstJuly 2014 N-Z-mELA-A 36920 62466 415 408 759 1310 72158 29059 iKY 49330
Comprehensive income FalE

Proft or the year KEEH - - - - - = - B 179 270
Other comprehensive income Afptrals

Curency tranglation differences EXZR - - - - - - Il - - Il
Total comprehensive income GalaEE - - - - - - Il 125 1719 015
Transactions with owners BHEELRS

Share options zpsed BRERI - - (419 - - - = 45 = =

Dividends paid o non-controling nterests X THAGIER RS - = = = = = = = (194 (1904
Tote trensactons with owners BRRELRGEE - - (419 - = = = 45 (1904 (1904
At 30th June 2015 RZZ-RE7A=TA 36920 62466 - 408 759 1310 2169 316232 3% 518431
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEEZBEIR

For the year ended 30th June 2016 BLE =F—~NFENA=1HIFFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

DARREAB

Other reserves

Hfbféfe

Available-for-

salefinancial -~ Exchange

assetreserve  fluctuation Non-
Share Share Capital ~ Revalwation ~ FIfAHE reserve  Retained  controlling
capital premium reserve reeve  BHEE EX earnings interests Total

Bx  RAERE  EARE  EGRE BE  RERE REEA FL6ER #E
HK$000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HK$000
TRn TEn TExn  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEr TR TER

At lstJuly 2015 R-2-REtA-A 36920 62466 408 7590 1310 7,169 316,232 21,336 518431
Comprehensive loss fafE
(Loss)/profit for the year KE(BlR)/ & = = = = = = (2649) 1,127 (25,365)
Other comprehensive loss LkagR
Cumency translation differences EizE - - - - - (31,781) - (393) (32,174)
Total compreensive loss FRBRAE - - = = — (I8 (649 O (575Y9)
Transactions with owners ERALRS
Disposal of interests in subsidianis (LS
without change of control (Note 39) MTE AERZE (M) - - 207 - - - - 87) 120
201412015 fina dividend paid -m/23-15§
ﬁiﬁﬁﬁxm - - - - - - (3,692) - (369)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests XFTHBHIER 2 RS - - - - - - - (1,599) (1,599)
Tota transactons vith owners EfRERHEE = = 207 = = = (369 (1,686) 517)
At 30th June 2016 RoB-7ERA=TA 36920 62466 615 7590 1310 40,388 286,048 20,384 455721

The notes on pages 48 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial ~ £48% |52 BRI A A B BRI BB

statements. 3o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
GEHRERER

For the year ended 30th June 2016 BiZ =F—~NENA=1HIFFE

2016 2015
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pl T THAT
Cash flows from operating activities REXBRER
Cash generated from operations REZXBHEEZR S 30(a) 78,776 10,265
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) RE/(BH)BENGEH 563 (3015)
The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") ERPEARKNE
income tax paid ([HE ) FfEH (8,361) (7,820)
PRC withholding tax paid E&hREREMEN (219) —
Interest received EUFIE 233 321
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activites ~ & EXBMEL/(FH) 2 FHE 70,992 (249)
Cash flows from investing activities REZBZHER
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE  BERR (7,138) (13,196)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME - BE RRHB
and equipment g 30(b) 170 339
Prepayments for property, plant and equipment WE - BB RREBREE
and renovation costs B (1,367) (2463)
Deposit paid for acquisition of land use right BBt REL RS = (3273)
Other tax paid for the land use right Wb £ 3 b AR 2 B B IA 2 1 176 -
Restricted bank deposits X BREHRITER (24,243) —
Net cash used in investing activities REZBHRERZFERSE (32,402) (18,593)
Cash flows from financing activities REXB RER
Proceeds from bank loans FIERITER 238,147 223279
Repayment of bank loans BRIRTEX (223,189) (169,960)
Decrease in trust receipt loans ERBEBERRD (47,186) (32915)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ST ISR R (1,599) (1,904)
Dividends paid SRR &) (3,692) —
Sale of interests in subsidiaries ek VNG £ 120 —
Interest paid on bank borrowings ERRITEERMES (11,098) (11,136)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities MEXKHM(ER) /EE2FHE (48,497) 7,364
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents ReRBReEEIRD (9,907) (11,478)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FOzRekReER 30(c) 78,569 90,036
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes INEERZETE (4,996) I
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year FRZBELREFR 30(c) 63,666 78,569

The notes on pages 48 to 152 are an integral part of these consolidated financial FBEINENMNTRESHBREANEED

statements. e
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Ngai Hing Hong Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the “Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The address
of its registered office is Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HMI I,

Bermuda.

The Company's shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“"HK$"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have

been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 27th September 2016.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently

applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issues by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation
of investment properties, available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and
financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit

or loss, which are carried at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IBHmRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 IEETBRME@)

2.|  Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 HHEEEE)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires RENE BB BRE LRI
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management HRFRERETHERSHES -
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting ENEEEREERAASENS
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or ATERRRPITREAE - RS
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated B HETs R EEE RS - X
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4. B RERE M BRKBEAREMN

fHEMEE - ERE4TRE -

(a)  Effect of adopting new standards, amendments/revises to standards (a) FRFER - HER B2
and interpretation SEITHREZ ZE
There are no new standards, amendments/revises to standards and BERBMAGUEAMAK
interpretation issued by the HKICPA which are mandatory for the SEVEB_Z-1%t
Group's financial year beginning on st July 2015. A—BEAFREERADN
HER  HEAERT AR
B
(b)  New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) (b) FEB(LEFEIINFE622
)
In addition, the requirements of Part 9 “Accounts and Audit” of BEAN - 3B AR AR B
the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) come into (B6NE)EIHRANE
operation during the financial year, as a result, there are changes to FINATERAMREE
presentation and disclosures of certain information in the consolidated WA Bt e BR
financial statements. REETERMERMEE
A& -
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 IEETBRME@)

2.  Basis of preparation (Continued)

(©

21 HREEE)

The following new standards and amendments to standards have (c) UTAREAMEBLIENEE
been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning st E_T-RFELA-BEN

July 2015 and have not been early adopted:

Amendment to Hong Kong Accounting Standard
("HKAS") 16 and HKAS 38
HEBGR AR R R BB G EAIEBHRNES

Amendment to HKFRS | |
HEBUBREENS | HKOEE]

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 41

HEBGTRAE R RB BT ERB4IROERT

Amendment to HKAS 27
HEBGTRERE7RAOERT

Annual Improvements Project

FEUERE

Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

YUERBIEREEDNE 05 - BEUEREED
F 1R RBEAL T ERE8RANEL]

Amendments to HKAS |

HEBSTERIE IRAEE]

HKFRS 14

BSE S R 14587

HKFRS 9
BAMBHREEAEIR

HKFRS 15
BAMBHREEAE5H

HKFRS 16
BB S RS | 65
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

HEBMERMEEE R REB G REAE2RAER]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.|  Basis of preparation (Continued)

(©

The following new standards and amendments to standards have
been issued but are not effective for the annual period beginning Ist

July 2015 and have not been early adopted: (Continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st January 2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after |st January 2018
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after Ist January 2019

To be determined

The Group has commenced an assessment of the impact of these
new standards and amendments to standards but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new standards and amendments to
standards would have a significant impact to the Group's results of

operations and financial position.

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the

Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to 30th June.

@)

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable retums from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returms through its
power over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at

their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle their
holders to a proportionate share of the entity's net assets in the
event of liquidation are measured at either fair value or the present
ownership interests’ proportionate share in the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date fair value,

unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRSs.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

@

Subsidiaries (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and
previously held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the

difference is recognised directly in the consolidated profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions
between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have

been adjusted to conform with the Group's accounting policies.

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment
losses (Note 2.9). Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in consideration
arising from contingent consideration amendments. Cost also includes
direct attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received and

receivable,
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)  Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of
control
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions - that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-

controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries
When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value, at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in consolidated other comprehensive income are reclassified to

consolidated profit or loss.

2.3 Segment information
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief
operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the

Executive Directors of the Company that make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

@

)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the Group's
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional currency").
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional and the Group's

presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are

recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings are
presented in the consolidated income statement within “finance
income or cost”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement within “other

(losses)/gains, net".

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available-for-sale, are included in consolidated

other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
24 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

() assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are

translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss account are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the
rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the

transactions); and

(i) all resutting exchange differences are recognised in consolidated

other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are

recognised in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

24

25

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(d)  Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal
On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a jointly controlled
entity that includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss
of significant influence over an associate that includes a foreign
operation), all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the equity holders of the

Company are reclassified to consolidated profit and loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result in the Group
losing control over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
the proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences are
reattributed to non-controlling interests and are not recognised in

consolidated profit and loss.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the

items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised
as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the income statement during the financial period in which they are

incurred.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

25

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences amortisation from
the time when the land interest becomes available for its intended use.
Amortisation on leasehold land classified as finance lease and depreciation
on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their

costs to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

— Leasehold land classified as finance lease Shorter of the remaining

lease term or useful life

— Buildings 2% - 2.5%
— Leasehold improvements Shorter of the unexpired

lease term or 20%

— Machinery and equipment 12.5%
— Fumiture, fixtures and office equipment 20%
— Motor vehicles 20%
— Tools and moulds 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. An asset's carrying amount
is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying

amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds
with the carrying amount of the relevant assets and are recognised in the

consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.6

2.7

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents
consideration paid for the rights to use the land on which various plants
and buildings are situated for a period from 42 to 50 years (2015: 46 to 50
years). Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights is calculated on a

straight-line basis over the period of leases.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land and buildings,
is held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and
that is not occupied by the Group. It also includes properties that are being
constructed or developed for future use as investment properties. Land held
under operating leases are accounted for as investment properties when
the rest of the definition of an investment property is met. In such cases, the
operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they were finance leases.
Investment property is initially measured at cost, including related transaction

costs and where applicable borrowing costs.

After initial recognition, investment properties are carried at fair value,
representing open market value determined at each reporting date by
external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if
necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the consolidated

profit or loss as part of a valuation gain or loss in “other (losses)/gains, net".
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Investment properties (Continued)

28

2.9

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying amount only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the consolidated profit

or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is determined by
comparing the proceeds and the carrying amount of the investment property

and is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Intangible assets - Technical know-how

Technical know-how comprises the acquired rights to use certain
technologies for the manufacture of plastic products. Acquired technical
know-how is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and
bring to use. These costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives of

five years.

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet available for use are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets
that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each

reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2\,

210

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries and non-financial assets
(Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount to the extent that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in the

income statement.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds the
total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is
declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial

statements of the investee's net assets including goodwill

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at

initial recognition.

(a)  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets
held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives
are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges.
Assets in this category are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months of the balance sheet date; otherwise, they

are classified as non-current.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued)
(b)  Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities
greater than |2 months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group's loans and receivables
include “trade and bill receivables”, “other receivables and deposits”,
“restricted bank deposits” and “cash and bank balances” in the

consolidated balance sheet.

(c)  Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated in this category or not classified in any of the
other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose of the

investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the
trade-date - the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair
value, and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated profit or loss.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any

provision for impairment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IBHmRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 IEETBRME@)
210 HEEE&)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of “financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss” are presented in the consolidated income
statement within “other (losses)/gains, net” in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss as part of other income when

the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-monetary securities classified
as available-for-sale are recognised in consolidated other comprehensive

income.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the

consolidated profit or loss as gains and losses from investment securities.

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss when the Group's right to receive payment is

established.

If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted investments),
the Group establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These include
the use of recent arm'’s length transactions, reference to other instruments
that are substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, and option

pricing models refined to reflect the specific circumstances of the issuer.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or

bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2

2.1l Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group

of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group
of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data
indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with

defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss

is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is

recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

211

212

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a significant
or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
also evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss - measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in consolidated
profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated profit or loss
on equity instruments are not reversed through the consolidated profit or

loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at their fair values.
The method of recognising the resulting gains or losses depends on whether
the derivative is designated and qualified as a hedging instrument, and if
so, the nature of the item being hedged. Assets and liabilities are classified
as current if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are

classified as non-current.

As the Group's derivative financial instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting, changes in the fair value of these derivative financial instruments
are recognised immediately in the consolidated profit or loss within “other

(losses)/gains, net'".
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

213

214

215

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold
or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of
trade and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current assets.

If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,

less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and bank overdrafts,
if any. In the consolidated balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within

borrowings in current liabilities.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 IEETBRME@)

2.16 Financial liabilities and equity 216 HBEAEREZ
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified AEER T MBERERERTA
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and BRENZHIBRERRUBE
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. ERERTE -
Financial liabilities (including trade payables) are initially measured at fair MsaE (&ET%JEHW\)WZF%
value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective WAREEFE  HEERERF
interest method. Eﬂﬁ‘xﬂﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁiz’iﬁ'ﬁ °
An equity instrument is any contract that does not meet the definition of Ea TAREMROITRMEAR
financial liability and evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group fﬁﬁ"]i%&ﬁ@%%ﬁﬁﬁ$%.?ﬂ
after deducting all of its liabilities. Ordinary shares are classified as equity. BAEREREATINER - T8
Incremental costs, net of tax, directly attributable to the issue of new shares BRpERER - BITHRIERE
or options are shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds. Z IR ATIR IR &l s B

g ARR o

2.17 Borrowings 217 E#
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs ERMPRAABELHNRESEH
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any RGHATER ° B EREHK
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the AR FEROBRZZHAR)
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss over the EERBENTAEZENRERA
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. BEREFHRANELSS B AR

o

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an PRIEREEERIGHENE RGN
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months REREZEEREREL T
after the end of the reporting period. A BREFS ?E/%ﬁﬁbﬁf e
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.18 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying assets are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged

to the consolidated profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss, except to the extent that it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income

or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)  Current income tax
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax

authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

®)

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they
arise from the initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the
time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income

tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the

temporary differences can be utilised.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

)

(©

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Qutside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries only to the extent
that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which the

temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention

to settle the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
220 Employee benefits

@

Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution scheme is a pension plan
under which the Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further legal or constructive obligations to

pay further contributions once the contributions have been paid.

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its relevant employees makes monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employee's relevant income with a maximum
of HK$ 1,500 per month, as appropriate, as defined in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance. The contributions are fully and

immediately vested in the employees.

The Group also contributes to certain defined contribution schemes
for its employees in the PRC. Contributions are made by the Group
on a monthly basis to those state-sponsored retirement plans based
on a percentage of the relevant income of the relevant employees.
The Group has no further obligations for the actual payment of
pensions beyond its contributions. The state-sponsored retirement
plans are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to

retired employees.

Contributions made are recognised as employee benefits expenses
when they are due and are not reduced by contribution forfeited by
those relevant employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset
to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments

is available.
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2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
220 Employee benefits (Continued)

)

©

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leaves are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liabilities
for annual leaves as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and

matemity leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan. The fair value of the employee services received in exchange
for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted, including any market performance conditions;
excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,

the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified performance and service
conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance sheet date, the entity
revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision of original estimates, if any, in the income

statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continueq) ) FEEHBEBE@®)
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220 Employee benefits (Continued)

(c)  Share-based compensation (Continued)

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium

when the options are exercised.

(d)  Bonus entitlements (@) EALEED
EREERESCDRECR
BMEARBETA TR
- mMZETSEIEM[E
B BB AL st
RAKHERLABE B
Motz aEREHE
T AR - WA
FNZEeHAE -

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected to
be settled within twelve months and are measured at the amounts

expected to be paid when they are settled.

221 Provisions 221 B

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of

obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is

recognised as interest expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

222

223

Operating leases (as a leasee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership
are retained by the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made
under operating leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the consolidated profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the

period of the lease.

Revenue and income recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable
for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of the Group's
activities. Revenue is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and

discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the Group's activities as
described below. The Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking
into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the

specifics of each arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods
Sales of goods are recognised when products have been delivered
to the customer, the customer has accepted the products and

collectability of the related receivables is reasonably assured.

(i) Provision of logistic services
Revenue from the provision of logistic services, including freight

forwarding services, is recognised when services are rendered.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IBHmRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 2 IEETBRME@)

2.23 Revenue and income recognition (Continued) 223 Wt RUAER (&)
(i) Interest income (i) FIEHA
Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the MERAKRAERHN AR
effective interest method. B e L 1 L R R
(iv)  Rental income (v)  HELA
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease MERADRERZEZNHE
period. HIAAE °
2.24 Dividend distribution 224 BEZE
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a DERTARAREREAZ KGR
liability in the Group's and the Company's financial statements in the period BRARARERE ALEEBR
in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders for final B B B - e RS AR AR
dividend and Board of Directors for interim dividend. AAEEGHERMAT RS ZH
[ EAKE MR AERS
B
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3 BKERER
3.1 Financial risk factors 3 BBEBEZE
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk AEEREEDEEZBHER
(including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair value interest rate risk and B msRARBENMERR B
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management ERERRAABENXERERE
policy focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to T%ﬂ ) EERRBRERBEERE
minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial performance. c REEEBRREE Y

%’EL‘A?E;EUE’\J BMG  AEHAL
ERBRRNBEINY ERER

& -
Management regularly monitors the financial risks of the Group. The use EEETHERASEZMBR
of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is governed by the b - RiESRETRRNITEER
Group's policies approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in Iﬁﬂﬂ$“ﬂ%$%ﬁt)ﬁﬂ@ﬂl%ﬁﬁ
order to manage those risks. The Group does not use derivative financial cAEB-REFEBARIREY
instruments for speculative purposes. 7|\|7: SRIEREINERR - K&
B EERITESR T AERKSE
& o
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with
transactions mainly settled in Hong Kong dollar (“HK$"), Renminbi
(“RMB™) and US dollar ("USD"). Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognised assets or liabilities are
denominated in a currency that is not the entity's functional currency.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various currency

exposures, primarily with respect to USD and RMB.

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risk against functional currency. It mainly
includes managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases made
by the relevant group companies in currencies other than their own
functional currencies. The Group also manages its foreign exchange
risk by performing regular reviews of the Group's net foreign
exchange exposures and has entered into certain foreign exchange
contracts to manage foreign exchange risks. As at 30th June 2016, the
Group had certain outstanding forward foreign currency contracts
mainly to purchase USD (2015: sell/purchase USD and RMB), details
of which have been disclosed in Note 23. Certain of the Group's
receivables, cash and bank balances, trade payables and borrowings
were also denominated in foreign currencies, details of which have
been disclosed in Notes 22, 24, 25 and 28. Since the HK$ is pegged
to USD, management are of the opinion that the exchange rate risk

exposure arising from USD s relatively insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

@

)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

At 30th June 2016, if HK$ had weakened/strengthened by 5% against
RMB, with all other variables held constant, post-tax loss (2015:
post-tax profit) for the year would have been HK$542,000 (2015:
HK$693,000) lower/higher (2015: higher/lower), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of foreign currency-

denominated non-derivative financial assets and liabilities.

As at 30th June 2016, the Group has no outstanding RMB forward
foreign currency contract. As at 30th June 2015, if the RMB forward
rate had weakened/strengthened by 5% against USD with all other
variables held constant, the Group's post-tax profit would decrease/
increase by HK$ 17.6 million, mainly as a result of the fair value

changes of the outstanding forward foreign currency contracts.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets except for the cash at bank. The
Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly attributable to
its borrowings. Borrowings carry at floating rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk whereas those carry at fixed rates expose

the Group to fair value interest rate risk.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

)

(©

(@

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group will review whether bank borrowings bearing fixed or
floating rates should be drawn from time to time with reference to

the trend of changes in interest rates.

As at 30th June 2016, if the interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, post-tax loss (2015:
post-tax profit) for the year would have been HK$398,000 (2015:
HK$367,000) lower/higher (2015: higher/lower), mainly as a result
of higher/lower interest income on cash at bank net off with higher/

lower interest expense on floating rate borrowings.

Price nisk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk in relation to its
plastic materials which is dependent on the oil price. The Group
closely monitors the price of its raw materials in order to determine

its pricing strategies.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk. The
carrying amounts of cash at bank, restricted bank deposits, trade and
bills receivables, deposits and other receivables, and available-for-sale
financial assets included in the consolidated balance sheet represent
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its

financial assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(@

Credit risk (Continued)

Substantially all of the Group's cash at bank and the restricted bank
deposits are deposited in major financial institutions located in Hong
Kong and the PRC, which management believes are of high credit
quality. The Group has a policy to limit the amount of credit exposure
to any financial institution and management does not expect any

losses arising from non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group also has policies in place to ensure that sale of products
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers. Normally

the Group does not require collaterals from trade debtors.

Management makes periodic collective assessment as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of trade and other receivables
(including deposits made) based on historical payment records, the
length of the overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors
and whether there are any disputes with the relevant debtors.
The Group's historical experience in collection of trade and other
receivables falls within the recorded allowances and the Directors are
of the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible receivables
has been made in these consolidated financial statements. The
Directors are of the opinion that deposits are made to credit worthy

parties and do not expect non-performance of the counterparties.

As at 30th June 2016, the Company had provided guarantees
in respect of banking facilities made available to its subsidiaries
amounting to HK$263,006,000 (2015: HK$312,735,000). Credit risk

in connection with such guarantees is considered to be minimal.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Ligquidiity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group aims to maintain

flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for additions
of and upgrades on property, plant and equipment, settlement of
borrowings, payment for trade and other payables, and payment for
operating expenses. The Group mainly finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of intemnal resources and bank

borrowings.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains sufficient cash balances
and adequate credit facilities to meet its liquidity requirements in the

short and long-term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Liguidity risk (Continued)

The Group measures and monitors its liquidity through the
maintenance of prudent ratio regarding the liquidity structure of the
overall assets, liabilities, loans and commitments of the Group. The
Group also maintains a prudent level of liquid assets and committed
banking facilities to ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to
meet any unexpected and material cash requirements in the ordinary
course of business. As at 30th June 2016, the total banking facilities
made available to the Group amounting to HK$531,529,000 (2015:
HK$679,746,000) of which HK$263,006,000 (2015: HK$312,735,000)
was being utilised by the Group.

The table below analyses the Group's and the Company's financial
liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the balance
sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed
in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flow, including
interest payments computed using contractual rates, based on the
earliest date on which the Group or the Company can be required
to pay. For the purpose of maturity analysis, the maturity date of bank
borrowings with a repayable on demand clause is based on agreed
schedule repayment set out in the loan agreements, disregarding
the repayment on demand clauses. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the Directors do not consider that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The Directors believe that such bank borrowings will be
repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in

the loan agreements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREE@)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3 HBEBEEE)
(e)  Liuidity risk (Continued) () RBELERE)
Within ~ Between |  Between 2
| year and2years and5 years Total
—FR —-E@MFR MERFA B
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TR TER TER
At 30th June 2016 RZE—R"ESA=T+H
Trade payables ECTANEN 72,875 — — 72,875
Other payables and accruals HitteN R R BIREH 16,220 — — 16,220
Bank borrowings RITEE 281,404 642 = 282,046
Derivative financial instruments fTEEMIA (850) (50) = (900)
Total B 369,649 592 — 370,241
Within ~ Between | Between 2
| year and2years and5 years Total
—FR —EMFA MELFA b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET THET THET
At 30th June 2015 RZZ—RF A=+H
Trade payables BHEMAR 71,819 — — 71819
Other payables and accruals H RN TERE R 17,596 = = 17,596
Bank borrowings RITIEE 318610 874 — 319,484
Derivative financial instruments fTEeMIA 2,338 = = 2338
Total Bz 410,363 874 — 411,237
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in
the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments to

shareholders, issue new shares or obtain new bank borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
borrowings less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as “equity”,

as shown in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt.

The table below analyses the Group's capital structure as at 30th June 2016
and 2015:
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2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

FEr THET

Total borrowings (Note 28) BEE (K 28) 280,843 317,469
Less: Cash and bank balances (Note 24) A Re KR emR (i 24) (73,821) (88,048)
Net debt (EG £ 207,022 229421
Total equity BiEn 455,721 518431
Total capital fanx 662,743 747,852
Gearing ratio BAREREHER 31% 319%

There was no change of the gearing ratio during the year as the Group

closely monitors the overall capital structure.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

According to HKFRS 7, financial instruments measured in the balance sheet
at fair value are required to disclose the fair value measurements by level of

the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level 1)

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or

indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2)

J Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable

market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

The carrying amounts of the Group's current financial assets, including
cash and bank balances, trade and bills receivable and deposits and other
receivables, and the Group's current financial liabilities including current
borrowings, trade payables, other payables and accruals approximate their

fair values due to their short maturities.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm's length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included in level
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e M IBHmRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREEE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AREEG(E)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument

are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market

data, the instrument is included in level 3.

There were no significant transfers of financial assets between level | and

level 2 fair value hierarchy classifications.

As at 30th June 2016, the Group's available-for-sale financial asset and

derivative financial instruments are categorised as level 3 financial instruments.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year
ended 30th June 2016. Disclosures relating to investment properties that are

measured at fair value are set out in Note |7.

WHNERMSEENERIA
(BN FHHTESBIR)N
AREBEKAEEFEZET &
BERMEENATEEMSEE
(WA) BEPKBERBOFTE
fhst - Wt E—SMIANAARE
BFENMEERGABTERY
B AZERIAIASLE -

—AHRLAERH AL FREA
BEMSHE  AZERTAIA
F3E-

2IREIBLABERASE
M BB AENEADE -

RZZE—R"¥/A=1TH X&H
ZAHLERBEERTAERT
AEDBIEFIEERTIA -

NTAREZE-S— " A=
AEFERNEIESRTANE
=R BRURARBEAENREY
XERMEI7TARKE -

_I_

Available- Derivative
for-sale financial

financial asset instruments

AHRHE T Total
MBEE ¢WMIA nE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET

Opening balance & 2,000 (14,443) (12,443)
Gain recognised in profit and loss RiE s iR S — 13,847 13,847
Currency translation differences P ] — 12 12
Closing balance HRR R 2,000 (584) 1,416

Annual Report £ & # % 2015/2016 | 85



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HBEREE@)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 33 AREEG(E)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year NTRRBZE-Z—RE A=T
ended 30th June 2015. ALFENEIEERITANE
xo
Available- Derivative
for-sale financial
financial asset instruments
A E PTHE Total
HEEE FRIA et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR THEL

Opening balance B 2,000 (34381) (32381
Gain recognised in profit and loss RiEm iR — 19,938 19,938
Closing balance HRR R 2,000 (14,443) (12,443)

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4  BEAETHEFRAE

Estimates and judgement used in preparing financial statements are continually AEERKBATEBUBERRNER
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including FEMEAZBERRAAEBREHNS
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the BBTER - AR KB R o

circumstances.

The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related A BHARRIEL 512 A

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a BEEABEELHEENERERER - I

material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next THRAEEERBROMGTRER 7

financial year are discussed below. BHEARTEMBFREYEEREREL
REEFEARE -

86 | AnnualReport % # % 2015/2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

@

®)

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

The Group's management determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment
with reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive
future economic benefits from use of these assets. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will adjust the
depreciation charge where useful lives or residual values vary with previously
estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-

strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values. Periodic review
could result in a change in depreciable lives and residual values and therefore

depreciation expense in the future periods.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and equipment, leasehold
land and land use rights and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to sell.

These calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

e M IBHmRMEE

4 EREFEFRAEE)

@

©
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NE - BERERENATEERTE
RERBEE - WA ERFHER
NMEEFRIEEERAENERR -
LK C R E R LB
IR EEMARIRE -

ERGEFHA L EG AT AEY
il BRSRENA R E
AR - AEBERRATEFHR
BE - BWERRLRED A
TERRBRIHERR -
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4

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

®)

©

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the
carrying value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net present value of future
cash flows which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these cash flow projections
are discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group's financial position and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future cash flow
projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the income

statement.

Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The fair value of each investment property individually is determined at
each balance sheet date by independent professional valuers by reference
to comparable market transactions and where appropriate on the basis
of capitalisation of the net rental income/net income, after allowing for
outgoings and in appropriate cases provisions for reversionary income
potential. These methodologies are based upon estimates of future results
and a set of assumptions as to income and expenses of the property and
future economic conditions. The fair value of each investment property
reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases and
assumptions about rental income from future leases in the light of current
market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash

outflows that could be expected in respect of the property.
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(@

(¢

@

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment in receivables (including deposits
made) based on an assessment of the recoverability of receivables. This
assessment is based on the credit history of its customers and other debtors
and the current market condition. Provisions are made where events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the receivables may not be collectible.
The identification of impairment in receivables requires the use of judgement
and estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of the receivables and
impairment is recognised or reversed in the period in which such estimate

has been changed.

Wiite-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group writes down inventories to their net realisable value based
on an assessment of the realisability of inventories. Net realisable value of
inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less estimated costs of completion and variable selling expenses. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Write-downs on inventories
are recognised where events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
value of the inventories may not be realised. The identification of write-
downs requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying
value of inventories and write-downs of inventories is recognised in the

period in which such estimate has been changed.

Fair value of denvative financial instruments

The fair value of derivative financial instruments which are not traded in
an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Group
uses its judgement to select an appropriate valuation method and makes
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing at the
balance sheet date. The valuation models require the input of subjective
assumptions, including forward foreign exchange rates, risk free rates and
market volatility. Changes in subjective input assumptions can materially

affect the fair value estimate.

e M IBHmRMEE
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 4  EASTHEFRAE #)
(Continued)
(e)  Income taxes and deferred tax () iR REEHE
The Group is subject to income taxes in various jurisdictions. Judgement ARBEMNL ERNERE WS
is required in determining the provision for income taxes in each of these —m EXRAAEENAENE S
jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations during the ordinary CRELAE c ERAREBRE
course of business for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. %:kaﬁ HEE R RIENR 5 et
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts B MREZENSREHBERE
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and ENFNCHNEE  AFEER
deferred tax provisions in the period in which such determination is made. ey EET A MYBENRENMEMN
RIRTEFTS IR -
Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences and HETERZERTEBBERL
tax losses are recognised when management considers it is likely that future BLFMEHEEREEERRAR
taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences or A Al B IR AR M AT AR VR 8
tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are different from the ZEERERSHIARBRMIER -
original estimates, such differences will impact the recognition of deferred ERHCEHAREMAEER
income tax assets and income tax charges in the period in which such ¥ AlZEERe N E 8
estimates have been changed. AATERLEMEHEE 2 BAR
FEHE
5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 WEKkIHER
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TRT
Revenue EEHE
Sales of goods HEEm 1,503,199 1615716
Provision of logistic services REDIR RS 2,864 4,110
1,506,063 1,619,826
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of plastic
materials, pigments, colorants, compounded plastic resins and engineering plastic

products.

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as the
Executive Directors of the Company. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the reports reviewed by the CODM that are used to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CODM considers the business from the
operations nature and the type of products perspective, including the trading of
plastic materials (“Trading”), manufacturing and sale of colorants, pigments and
compounded plastic resins (“Colorants”), manufacturing and sale of engineering
plastic products (“Engineering plastics”) and other corporate and business activities,

including the provision of logistic services (“Others").

Each of the Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
is managed by different business unit leaders. Inter-segment transactions are
entered into under the normal commercial terms and conditions that would also
be available to unrelated third parties. Information provided to the CODM is

measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial statements.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based on a
measure of revenue and operating profit, which is in a manner consistent with that

of the consolidated financial statements.
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5

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for

the year ended 30th June 2016 is as follows:

5 WEkIBEN@M)
BHE_Z-—R"E/ A=tHL
LERGEREEZUZIH
BT

FERH

EDHE

Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g% EGEH IREZR Hit BN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
Fn  FER  FAx TR TER
Tumover = 2
— Gross revenue — 7 b AR E 1,046,494 343,969 183,686 2925 1,577,074
— Inter-segment revenue —DEEEE (65,300) (3,738) (1,918) (55) (71,011)
Revenue from external customers NP P U R 981,194 340,231 181,768 2,870 1,506,063
Segment results AEEE (43,130) 35,194 8,403 (5,002) (4,535)
Finance income ek 1,124 143 298 — 1,565
Finance costs MKER (8,279) (1,485) (1,003) (331) (11,098)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRBEAT (&518) & 7l (50,285) 33,852 7,698 (5.333) (14,068)
Income tax expense HIEX (11,297)
Loss for the year AEEE (25,365)
Non-controling interests I (1,127)
Loss attributable to equity NERRELER
holders of the Company (26,492)
Other information: Hip &R -
Additions to non-current assets EmBEELM
(other than financial instruments ~ (BR&RTAR
and deferred tax assets) BETREEEIN) 192 2,930 5,074 106 8,302
Depreciation of property, mE - BEREE
plant and equipment e 744 5,934 10,990 726 18,394
Amortisation of leasehold land ME 3t
and land use rights i P 2 34 381 276 32 78 767
Provision for/(reversal of) FRREER
impairment of inventories, net /(BE) —F8 3,292 (1,155) (117) 4) 2,016
(Reversal of)/provision for B HRIORE
impairment of trade (), %
receivables, net — % (142) 29 = 513 400
Fair value losses on derivative fTESMIA
financial instruments, net AREBEFEER 13,358 — — — 13,358
Fair value losses/(gains) KREMERABE
on investment properties B,/ (&) 212 — — (1,950) (1,738)

92 | AnnualReport % £ # % 2015/2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e M IBHmRMEE
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WEkoHER )
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments as RIZZE-—REAAZTRRELERE
at 30t June 2016 is as follows: BRREZAZINHREDHBERDT
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g% EGH IRZR Hit EN

HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TERT TR TERT FRT TR

Segment assets NEEE 315,548 276,975 135,495 119,321 847,339
Total assets BERE 847,339
Segment liabilities PaR=i3=Xr (67,776) (29,119) (10,835) (3,045)  (110,775)
Borrowings BE (220,568) (24,306) (28,140) (7829)  (280,843)
Total liabilities BaE (288,344) (53,425) (38,975) (10,874)  (391,618)
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5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WaERIHER @)
BE_Z-AF/ A=THIFERH
RERBERREZAZINBEDHE

The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments for
the year ended 30th June 2015 is as follows:

BT
Engineering
Trading Colorants plastics Others Group
g5 EEH  IiREN At KEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Tumover = 2
— Gross revenue —DHREHE [,135162 382,829 189,179 4,163 1,711,333
— Inter-segment revenue —DEREHE (87,558) (2656) (1293) - (91,507)
Revenue from external customers MR P IiEs 1,047,604 380,173 187,886 4,163 1,619,826
Segment results AEEE 2953 35,137 7318 (1951 43457
Finance income g dl e 1,722 168 359 — 2,249
Finance costs HHBER (7,683) (1956) (1233) (264) (11,136)
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRBAT (B518), & 7 (3,008) 33349 6,444 (2.215) 34570
Income tax expense BIBZH (7.566)
Profit for the year ARE G 27,004
Non-controlling interests eIl g (1,779)
Profit attributable to equity NG E eyl
holders of the Company 25225
Other information: HibER -
Additions to non-current assets FERBEELM
(other than financial instruments (hemIAR
and deferred tax assets) BRETRIEAEN) 822 18,932
Depreciation of property, mE - BEREE
plant and equipment nE 765 17,561
Amortisation of leasehold land ME LT+
and land use rights Rz 398 715
Reversal of impairment FERERD
of inventories, net — %8 @791 (3,006)
Provision for impairment of g HRAGRE
trade receivables, net LB 58 - 1,340
Fair value gains on derivative TEERMIA
financial instruments, net AR EBEFERM (17.664) (17,664)
Fair value gains on REVELR
investment properties BER A (116) (1,516)

94 | AnnualReport % # % 2015/2016



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

HFEUMBHRRMEE
5  REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 WaRkoaHER#E)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the reportable segments as RZZE-AFAA-THRELERL
at 30th June 2015 is as follows: ERRE R REDHDERMT ¢
Engineering

Trading Colorants plastics Others Group

25 EGH  IRBH Hit A&EE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THT AT THT TAT THT

Segment assets NEEE 392363 290816 156,485 119,739 959,403

Total assets BEE 959,403
Segment liabilities AMER (74.217) (29,510) (13351) (6425)  (123503)
Borrowings fE& (238011) (28,550) (43.960) (6948)  (317469)
Total liabilities BmeE (312,228) (58,060) (57311 (13373)  (440972)

The entity is domiciled in Hong Kong. The revenue from external customers from
Hong Kong for the year ended 30th June 2016 is approximately HK$637,372,000
(2015: HK$732,523,000), and the total of its revenue from external customers
from other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately HK$868,69 1,000 (2015:
HK$887,303,000).

At 30th June 2016, the total of non-current assets other than financial instruments
and deferred tax assets located in Hong Kong is approximately HK$ 153,244,000
(2015: HK$158,620,000), and the total of these non-current assets located
in other locations (mainly the PRC) is approximately HK$94,714,000 (2015:
HK$106,343,000).

AERUBAAEH - HE-_S— RN
FRR=THILFEEREEBZIND
BE W9 56373720008 T(ZF
—FRF 7325230008 )  MABE
i E(EEATE) ZINDER K
#) 7868,691,000% T(Z T — & F
887,303,000/87) °

RZZE—XR"EXA=+H KewIA
REEHEEEIMIRERZHERE
BEEXNARI53244008F (=T — A
4 : 158,620,000 7T ) - i i A E b
MER(ZERATE)CHZHRDEE
£ B94714000% T(Z T — 1 F
106,343,000 7T) °
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SFEMFBRRME
6 OTHER INCOME 6 HfttlA
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
T THRT
Rental income HeBA 5,594 5318
Outgoings in respect of investment properties amounted to approximately REM* 2 B X & 14208000 7T
HK$208,000 (2015: HK$179,000). (ZZ—AR%F : 17900087T) °
7 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS, NET 7 Rfb(EE) s - S
2016 2015
HK$000 HK$'000
TRz TRT
Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 17) REMFN DA BER (K 17) 1,738 1,516
Fair value (losses)/gains from forward RIEEERBZINERBEH
foreign exchange contracts held for trading, net AREBEFEER) &7 (13,358) 17,664
Net exchange losses INERBRFE (1,433) (810)
(13,053) 18,370
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

8 BMEIATZAX

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TERT
Cost of inventories sold excluding manufacturing costs HEFERA (T BEEEKR) 1,234,787 1,342,535
Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights (Note 16) & 1 Jz & {55 PR 85 (P o 16) 767 715
Auditor's remuneration RER e
— Audit services —ZHR% 2,526 2,396
— Non-audit services — R BR T 599 603
Depreciation e 18,394 17,561
Provision for impairment of trade receivables, net ORI EER - F8 400 1,340
Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of inventories, net FERBEER/(BE) 8 2,016 (3,006)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEWE - BE REHE 2 K& (165) (280)
Employee benefit expenses, EERMX L (BRESEME)
including Directors’ emoluments (Note 13) (P& 13) 128,750 123512
Operating lease rentals in respect of land and buildings TiREFEERERSE 8,254 8911
Repairs and maintenance expenses BIERRERX 4,127 3,752
Transportation and packaging expenses ERRBERX 26,935 27,731
Travelling and office expenses ERRFRERT 10,129 10,850
Utility expenses KERAX 15,200 15,527
Other expenses Ht &R 50,420 47910
Total cost of sales, distribution costs HEKA - DA RITR
and administrative expenses aut k] 1,503,139 1,600,057
Representing: Rk :
Cost of sales HEKA 1,318,513 420,687
Distribution costs DA 79,744 76358
Administrative expenses T 104,882 103,012
1,503,139 1,600,057
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9  FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS

9 HMBELENEAR

2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER BT
Finance income: B as -
— Interest income from bank deposits —BITERFEKA 233 321
— Net exchange gains on financing activities —REEBZIVEREFHE 1,332 1928
1,565 2,249
Finance costs: HMBER -
— Interest on bank borrowings wholly repayable —ERAFANREER ZIRT
within five years ELZA-) (11,098) (11,136)
Finance costs, net MEER—F8 (9,533) (8,887)
[0 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10 BEXH

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2015: 16.5%) on

the estimated assessable profit for the year. Taxation on the Group's subsidiaries

established and operate in the PRC has been calculated on the estimated assessable

profit for the year at the rates of taxation as applicable to the relevant subsidiaries.

The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated income statement

BRENGHILREF AL ERTOEF
BREADZTABE(ZE—0F A
DZTAME)AERE - PEKBAIR
BASERPBERLREE ZMBRA
ZAFER G ERBEN LA RMNELD
Al ZBRMERE

BANGRZFAZHS

represents:
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TRz TRT
Current income tax: AEFHRA -
Hong Kong profits tax BBMED 1,875 1,203
PRC corporate income tax REI R EPTET 9,359 6,801
PRC withholding tax on dividend income AR B E & B BRI AT B
(Note 34(e)) (P 5E34(e)) 219 —
(Over)/under-provision in previous years NEFE(BERE)/BETR (248) 3
11,205 8,007
Deferred income tax (Note 29) EERIE (P E29) 92 (441)
11,297 7566
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The taxation on the Group's (loss)/profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the Hong Kong profits tax rate as follows:

10 BUEAXIL (&)

AEBEBRHNER), SH 2 HE
RRERAESHEN Y HEmE

BEmBE EBMT :
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRBEAT(E18),a (14,068) 34,570
Tax charged at a rate of 16.5% BEE 165%(ZF—0F : 165%)

(2015: 16.5%) AEZHE (2,321) 5,704
Effect of different tax rates in the PRC PETAREZZE 2,037 3,070
Income not subject to tax EmARD WA (1,752) (2,519)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes OGIEi 1k s 1,829 552
Tax losses not recognised AERZTBER 10,202 1,742
Utilisation of previous unrecognised tax losses FRENARERNTBER (50) (996)
(Over)/under-provision in previous years NEFE(RERE) BETR (248) 3
Whrite-off of deferred income tax asset previously recognised A 2 R RIEET T8 & E #i3H 1,047 —
Reversal of temporary differences that previously recognised T BT E FERM & 14 = 1 0 85 —
PRC withholding tax on dividend income AR B a4 0 BRI A 3 219 =
Others At 249 10

11,297 7,566
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Il DIVIDENDS I RE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THRT
Interim, paid, of Nil (2015: Nil) THRIRPHRE
per ordinary share (ZZ—h%F: &) — o
Final, proposed, of Nil (2015: HK1.0 cent) TREARBERE(ZZ—1F
per ordinary share BRE @A 1.08) — 3,692
— 3,692
Notes: Bt o -
(@) Atameeting held on 27th February 2015, the Directors resolved not to declare any intenim @@ K= AFZAZTHRERZEE
dividend for the six months ended 31st December 2014. Ie - é?ui}ﬂ:‘?fiﬁi_ Z—FE+=
A=+—RIEXEA SRR TR
B
(b) At a meeting held on 24th September 2015, the Directors proposed a final dividend of b)) RIE-AFNAZTHESETzEZ
HK$1.0 cent per share, totalling HK$3,692,000 for the year ended 30th June 2015, which L EXEMIBE-FT-AFAA
was paid during the year ended 30th June 2016, and has been reflected as an appropriation STREFERERBKREGR 0%
of retained eamings for the year ended 30th June 2016. il 3,692,000/ 7T ° WEREER

BE_Z—RERA=ZTHLEFEAX

i YEREE-Z

—RERA=TH

ILEERZRBEP DR -

(0) At a meeting held on 25th February 2016, the Directors resolved not to declare any interim () RIE-—R"F-A-T+HAHESA

dividend for the six months ended 3 st December 2015. Lt EEERAIHEECS

ﬁi-l—_

A=t R LLEESREMBHRS -

(d)  Atameeting held on 27th September 2016, the Directors resolved not to declare any final d) RZEBE-—FR"ENAZTERETZEZE

dividend for the year ended 30th June 2016. b EFERTHEZE =D

—NERA

=t RIFEEREMRARS -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SAMISRENE
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BR(ER) /B
Basic -9
Basic (loss)/eamings per share is calculated by dividing the (loss)/profit attributable SREK(ER)/BADERARRER
to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary H(ER),/EFHRAFREETEBR
shares in issue during the year. Z METFHEGETE -
2016 2015
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity holders of RARIRR G (BE), a5
the Company (HK$'000) (F%T) (26,492) 25225
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue FREBTE R METFIH 369,200,000 369,200,000
Basic (loss)/eamings per share (HK cents per share) GRER(ER) /BRI (FREW) (7.18) 6.83
Diluted #E
Dilutive (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 30th June 2016 and 2015 RZE-—R"EAA=THARZZ—5F
equal basic (loss)/earnings per share as there was no dilutive potential ordinary ANA=TH ARAUEAEEEN
share as at the year ended 30th June 2016 and 2015. TEE Bt REE-_T—X~ERA

ZTAR-F-AFANA=THLMMAE
£ SREE(BR) /BATASERE
REK(BR),/BF -

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING DIRECTORS' 13 EERNXL(ERESHE)
EMOLUMENTY)

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

T TET

Wages, salaries and other allowances T& - 5o R H 2Rk 122,699 117,466
Pension costs BIRERAR 6,051 6,046
128,750 123512
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eV BRRM T

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR 14

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(@) Directors’ emoluments

The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year

ended 30th June 2016 is set out below:

ZHE
@ EFHz

ESvNENERREE

BUBESIMEHT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect ofa person’s services as
a Director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
ERES(TERALATENELR)
REBENXAIEUNHE

Salaries, other

allowances and

Employer's

Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of
Director’s
other services
in connection
with the
management
of the affairs of
the company
or its subsidiary

undertaking

REBALNE

contributionto HEKFAT

&

BAS

BE-TFA=TALER

benefitsinkind  Discretionary pension BB RM

#M- bonuses Housing scheme  HHEZHE
Fees Rit2e BEME allowance ExH [BGES Total
Name of Director £ B RENAE fd EERN Bféz#tz  EhwHe an
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tén Tén Tén Tén Tén Tén Tén

Executive Directors YTES

MrHUI Sai Chung Gy 1,655 2,48 - - 301 = 4204
Mr HUI Kwok Kiwong AEEEE 1,655 248 - - 301 = 4204
Dr WONG Chi Ying Anthony ETEEL - 21528 - - 28 — 2810
Mr LAI Kam Wah (Note) RRELE () - 1,995 — 6 20 — 2879
Madam LIU Sau L BAENL - 1,775 - - 169 = 1,944
Mr NG Chi Ming REREE - 1,753 12 — 19 = 1,961
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e M IBHmRMEE

|14 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR 14 EEZNaNEZRSEEEAR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) ZM&#)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EEFEHz (&)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect ofa person’s services as
a Director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
FRES(TERALAZENELR)
REBENXAIEUNHE

Other
emoluments
paid or
receivable in
respect of
Director’s
other services
in connection
with the
management
of the affairs of
the company

or its subsidiary

undertaking
Salaries, other Employer's REEALT
allowances and contributionto - L EMEAT
benefits inkind ~ Discretionary pension  MSHREM

#M- bonuses Housing scheme  HHEZHE
Fees =01)-43 BfTME allowance ExH [BGES Total
Name of Director 302 e REVNAG MEL  EE2R BHezfiR  EHHMe L
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThER TEn Ti#n THER THER ThER ThER

Independent Non-Executive Directors BY $#{TES

Mr HO Wai Chi,Paul fEEEE 200 — — — — — 200
Mr CHAN Dt Lung Uy i 150 - - - - - 150
Mr CHING Yu Lung BgELE 150 - - - - - 150
Totd fa% 3810 12,547 12 662 1451 - 18,502
Note: BfsE -

Mr LAl Kam Wah resigned as Director of the Company during the year ended 30th June RRETAERN T —"E A=THH
2016, HBERRRZEEH -
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR 14 EEZN@NEZRSEEEAR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) ZM&#)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EEFEHz (&)
The remuneration of each of the Directors of the Company for the year BE_T-RFR A=THLEE
ended 30th June 2015 is set out below: BUEZzMEMT
Certain of the comparative information of directors’ emoluments for the ZRIRBA SR RRPDREZEZ
year ended 30th June 2015 previously disclosed in accordance with the Z-RAEAA=THLEFEREN
predecessor Companies Ordinance have been restated in order to comply EXEMeNE THRANRE S
with the new scope and requirements by the Hong Kong Companies AFEBEB(DBEHINE 6202 E)
Ordinance (Cap. 622). REMFBRMBAT -
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e M IBHmRMEE

|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR 14 BEBCAGZNEZREEEEAR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) P AC )]
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EFhz (8)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person's services as
a Director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
{ERES(AERARAZENEAA)
RERBN N ZERNME

Other

emoluments

paid or

receivable in

respect of

Director's

other services

in connection

with the

management

of the affairs of

the company

or its subsidlary

undertaking

Salaries, other HEBARA

alowances and Employers  FHEMELA

benefitsinkind  Discretionary contributionto A=A HEAE

&M - bonuses Housing  pension scheme  Et EZfR#%
Fes  Eft2¥  BfERE alowance EXy  mxfia Total
Name of Director 514 fe  REDHE Wit BERR RAGMH  Ehe#e o
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TAL TiEL TiEL TAL TEL TAL TAL

Executive Directors H1E%

Mr HUI Sai Chung artt e 1,375 2528 = = 35 = 428
MrHUI Kiwok Kwong AERLE 1375 21528 - - 35 = 428
Dr WONG Chi Ying Anthony ETERT - 2158 = = 284 = 281
Mr LAl Kam Wah RRELE - 1,808 - 70 202 = PNE(
Madam LU Sau Lai BAELT = 775 = = 182 — 1957
Mr NG Chi Ming RERLE - 1753 4 = 210 = 1967
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR 14 EEZNENEZREEEEAS

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) ZME#)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) @ EEFEHz (&)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as
a Director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
fEREZ(MERADALANBELA)
REREM N REROME

Other

emoluments

paid or

receivable in

respect of

Director’s

other services

in connection

with the

management

of the affairs of

the company

orits subsidiary

undertaking

Salaries, other HERALT

allowances and Employers  ZEAMBAR

benefitsinkind ~ Discretionary contributionto A =R HR(E

AR bonuses Housing  pension scheme £ % fRi%
Fees 28 A1k alowance Exy sz Total
Narne of Director Y e REME MEAL  BERE BAe/HR  EhoMe &g
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TEn Tin Tin TR TETL AT TEn

Independent BUFiES

Non-Executive Directors
MrHO Wai Chi, Paul fgFLE 200 - - - - - 20
Mr CHAN Dt Lung Rt 150 - - - - - 150
Mr CHING Yu Lung BmEkE 150 = = — — - 150
Totd fa% 3250 12920 4 70 1528 = 1842
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

@

®)

©

(@

(€

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

No Director waived any emoluments during the year (2015: Nil). No
emoluments have been paid by the Group to any Director as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office
during the year (2015: Nil).

Directors’ retirement benefits
No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any Directors during

the year (2015: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
No payment was made to Directors as compensation for the early

termination of the appointment during the year (2015: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making available directors’
services
No payment was made to the former employer of Directors for making

available the services of them as a Director of the Company (2015: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of directors,

controlled bodes corporate by and connected entities with such directors

There were no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in favour of Directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities with such Directors

during the year (2015: Nil).

e M IBHmRMEE

14 EBEEZFRIEZREEERAS
pd i AL ),

@

)

(©

(@)

()

EFHE (8)
RAFEEANL EBEZWERS 2 M
2(ZF-0%F: E) RAFE
ARKERES N FEMNESNE
e kEZESBU 2 HECT
—hF &)

EFHRIEF
RAFERLIRFMESZRERAK
BAN(ZE—0%F 8\)-
EENRIUAET
RAFERLERERFRIERE
MAEER/EMNEN T8
FE)o

PR REFERBEMIE =T IEH

HIEHE
RAFENLEIREEERET
M = F R E R EREEER
(ZZ—hF: &)

FEE  RZ%FEEEHEA
BIRERZEFABET RIEHA
B3 BEFHMEMK ZHEH
RAEERNLERNEE XAFE

SEHNEABERZESNEE
FRRHEER  EERNEMR S

(ZE—RhF &)
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|4 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS AND SENIOR 14 EEZN@NEZRSEEEAR

MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued) A kAC Y
(1) Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts (N EFEXKS LHXAEFMEX
Bz
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the AERAFEER  AQBVER
Company's business to which the Company was a party and in which FIEMYRAEE 2 EBMARE]
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or JESEEYREEEPHEEER
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year BaR BERS  REHER(Z
(2015: Nil). T-RhF:E)-
(g)  Five highest paid individuals 6 AEREHAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group AEEN ERlGEHMAL
for the year include four (2015: four) Directors whose emoluments are B WO (ZF—hF : @) RE
disclosed in the analysis presented above. The emoluments paid and payable 2 HMeER X2z o
to the remaining individual during the year were as follows: RE  SRT0—URSHFMALR
TERZHMFEDT :
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
Salaries, other allowances and benefits in kind M - HeRRREYNG 2,370 2,203
Discretionary bonus HEIEAL 244 82
Pension costs RIREHA 264 264
2,878 2,549
The emoluments of the afore-mentioned individual fell within the band of AT ZHMEEAZBETE
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 (2015: HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000). E-BLE-REAL(ZE-1
No emoluments have been paid to the five highest paid individuals (including F: AR TEZBLE=RE
Directors and other employees) as an inducement to join or upon joining BIL)BER AREL &M L
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2015: Nil). MAT(BRESRAMES )X

M & {E AR E AR IERRERAL
ZBE(CZ-hF: &)
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e MR RMEE
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 W% BERRHE
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
land and Leasehold ~ Machinery and office
buildings  improvements and  equipment Motor ~ Toolsand  Construction
BELH HE  equpment RER vehicles moulds  in progress Total
RgT  9ERE  ESRRE KLERG nE IARER  EERIE &g

HK$000 HK$1000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TEn TR TR TEn BT THT T TR

At Istuly 2014 R=Z-mE+A-A
Cost AR 125408 40861 186,354 19,191 8340 2101 - 382,255
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE (38212) 3013 (161,309) (16719) (685) (1430) — (47153
Net book amount KHE 87,196 7,848 25049 2472 1482 671 - 134718

Year ended 30th June 2015 Bz-T-1f
NAZTALFE

Opening net book amount HREFE 87,19 7,848 25049 2472 1482 671 - 134718
Additions #m - 2,803 8317 1,898 464 307 1,755 15544
Transfer between categories P EREE - - 12 (147) - 3 - -
Disposalshwrite-off HE /M — — “ 4N — (14) — (59)
Deprecition & Qs Ry ) (108) (687) w — (75D
Closing net book amount HREEFE 84345 13530 27692 3139 1,259 m 1755 132642
At 30th June 2015 RZZT-1%
~A=tA
Cost AR 125408 43647 192,868 20209 7987 2418 [,755 394292
Accumulated deprecition BitFE @) GO (6576 (7010 (678 (14%) — 816s0)
Net book amount REFE 84345 13530 17692 3,139 1259 m [,755 132,642
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I5 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 15 % BERRE@)
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures
landand  Leasehold ~ Machinery  and office
buildings - improvements and  equipment Motor ~ Toolsand Construction
HEL BE  equipment R®ER vehicles moulds in progress Total
REF  NERE  BERRE  BOERE RE IAREA  ERIE a5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR THR TR THR ThR THER TR ThR
Year ended 30th June 2016 HE_Z-1F
AR=THILFE
Opening net book amount BOEEFE 84,345 13,530 27,692 3,139 1,259 9 1,755 132,642
Addtions S — 2499 5,787 486 829 — — 9,601
Transfer from construction AERIREA
in progress — 1,755 — — — — (1,755) —
Transfer between categories PERER - - 19 (19) — — — —
Disposals e — — — (5) — — — ()
Currency translation differences B ZH (4063) (255) (1,159) (94) ) (29) — (5672)
Depreciation ik (2783) (7,695) (6134) (1,074) (602) (106) — (18,394)
Closing net book amount B 77499 9,834 26,205 2433 1,414 187 - 118,172
At 30th June 2016 RIE—E
~A=TH
Cost A 119,140 4141 183,509 18,341 8420 2312 — 378973
Accumulated depreciation iiE (41,641) (37407)  (I57304) (15,908) (7,006) (1,535) —  (260801)
Net book amount BHFE 77499 9,834 26,205 2433 1,414 787 — 118,172

Depreciation expense of HK$14,752,000 (2015: HK$13,895,000) has been
included in cost of sales, HK$319,000 (2015: HK$307,000) in distribution costs and

HK$3,323,000 (2015: HK$3,359,000) in administrative expenses.

As at 30th June 2016, the net book amount of property, plant and equipment
pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately

HK$43,322,000 (2015: HK$46,245,000).
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16 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights represent prepaid

operating lease payments and their net book amounts are analysed as follows:

e M IBHmRMEE

l6 HETWRIWEARE

AEEREET R I ERE R
RRENKERETR  AREFED
T

2016 2015

HK$°000 HK$'000

TER TET

At beginning of the year F) 21,510 22,225
Addition 2 3,097 —
Amortisation i (767) (715)
Currency translation differences [ERER (1,443) —
At end of the year FR 22,397 21510

As at 30th June 2016, the net book amount of leasehold land and land use rights

pledged as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately

HK$3,340,000 (2015: HK$3,671,000).

R-ZE—A"EXA=Z+H HELHEK
+ 3t 66 FA 4 BR [ % B 49 3,340,000 7T
(ZZ—R%F 36710008 L) EHBFEF
BT RAKERBRIEE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17 REWME
2016 2015
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
At beginning of the year F14 105,075 103,559
Fair value gains on investment properties (Note 7) REMEZ AR BERE(ET) 1,738 1,516
Currency translation differences Rt (763) =
At end of the year FR 106,050 105,075
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eV BRRM T

|7

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

@

Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation of the Group's investment properties was
performed by the valuer, Chung, Chan & Associates, to determine the fair
value of the investment properties as at 30th June 2016 and 2015. The
revaluation gains or losses are included in “other (losses)/gains, net” (Note
7) in the consolidated income statement. The following table analyses the

investment properties carried at fair value, by valuation method.

17

REVEE)
(a) LrEEFE

AEENRENEAGENEET
RZE—R"EN=-Z-HF~A
= TRHITELMAE  UEBTED
REE  ERUERERERES
Bl EROIEML(BR) -
FRIP(HET) - TRAMAGE
EDMRDABEARNRED
o

Fair value

measurements at

30th June 2016

using significant

unobservable inputs

(Level 3)

RZB—XRF

AA=1H

) PN )

BEa AL

NAREETE

Description it (%38)
HK$'000

TER

Recurring fair value measurements REMLREEFE
Investment properties: REWE

— Industrial building units - Hong Kong —IXKEEf-FE 95,900

— Car park units - Hong Kong —FEA-FB 1,650

— Commercial office units and apartment - PRC —BERAEEL—F 8,500
106,050
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|7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17
(a)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

e M IBHmRMEE

REYX @)

AR BERE ()

Fair value
measurements at
30th June 2015
using significant

unobservable inputs

(Level 3)
R-_Z—1%F
~NA=1H
MAERAA
BRE AL
WAREERE
Description it (%3E)
HK$'000
TR
Recurring fair value measurements REMRREBETE
Investment properties: REWE
— Industrial building units - Hong Kong —T¥REE-FH 94,000
— Car park units - Hong Kong —FEA-FE 1,600
— Commercial office units and apartment - PRC —BERAEEL—F 9,475
105,075
The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair AEENBRE AR ERERNE
value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances HBERNENAE - BRAA

that caused the transfer.

There were no transfer between Levels |, 2 and 3 during the year.

BEER 2 FE -

RERTEE - F2REIERH
LS
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|7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(a)  Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
The following table presents the changes in investment properties with fair
value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the
year ended 30th June 2016.

REME &)

(a) RAEEFEE)
TEERREZ-_T—X~E~A
=THILFERFIAEATTER
BANDAEBEFE(EIE)NE
BYEEE

30th June 2016
R-ZB-AEXA=1AH

PRC Hong Kong Total
i BB i

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT TR

Opening balance Y& 9,475 95,600 105,075
Net gain from fair value adjustment DREEARKGFE (212) 1,950 1,738
Currency translation differences Pt (763) = (763)
Closing balance HiRR B8R 8,500 97,550 106,050
Total net gains for the year included FRREFERE
in the consolidated income statement, BREEEERERN
under other (losses)/gains, net [Eth (E518), /Wi
— %8+ 212) 1,950 1,738
30th June 2015
—REA~A=1H
PRC Hong Kong Total
f BB b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT BT FET
Opening balance 4 9,359 94,200 103,559
Net gain from fair value adjustment f*{ﬁfﬁﬁﬂﬁmﬁl =R R 116 1,400 1,516
Closing balance Bk & 9,475 95,600 105,075
Total gains for the year included FRNRREE -
in the consolidated income statement, BREFERERN
under other (losses)/gains, net [E i (B518),/Wias
—F8 T 16 1,400 1,516

The Group's interests in investment properties in Hong Kong and PRC are

held on leases of between 10 to 50 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

|7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

®)

Valuation process of the Group

The Group's investment properties were revalued at HK$106,050,000 (2015:
HK$105,075,000) as at 30th June 2016 by Chung, Chan & Associates, an
independent professionally qualified valuer who holds a recognised relevant
professional qualification and has recent experience in the locations and
segments of the investment properties valued. Certain of the investment
properties are leased to third parties under operating lease arrangements,
further summary details of which are included in Note 17(e) to the

consolidated financial statements.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. The finance department
reports directly to the CODM. Discussions of valuation processes and results
are held between the CODM, finance department and the independent

valuer.
At each financial year end the finance department:

. Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

0 Assesses property valuations movements when compared to the

prior year valuation report; and
0 Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date between

the CODM, finance team and the independent valuer.

e M IBHmRMEE

17 REWXE)

(®)

FEEH G ETE
AEENREMERBUEEME
MEETE=% i\ﬂ +H
18 5 106,050,000 7T (=
iw%mwm%m%kﬁ@%
FERBRIEXER  WHAH
ﬁmﬁﬁﬁ%mﬁmm%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ

TS - BOREMFAREHR
ﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ%”* E—TFE

RERE IR MTFE 17(e) R EE

AEEHGHAPBRS BOLE
VR EMNGEETR o M
ERMBREERREER - BF
RERFE  MBHAGENHE

A mmEREMAEER
ESEMHFER  MBEHHE

o REUHBURERSHHMA
EXBA

. EMEHERLEEEE
HELB TR

o EBURHEMETHR

NEERERY  F3IBAAEE
MEPHERELRRE - HHH
B EMED AR
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7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 REV=R#E)
(c)  Valuation techniques (¢ 1EERMN
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs FAERE TR B A B
DA MBIEHE
Fair values of investment properties of the Group are generally determined FEEMRENERAEBE—RK
using the income approach and market comparable approach which largely BEBEWREMGE - W EFER
use unobservable inputs and taking into account the significant adjustment ATABREA  TEZRFHE
on term yield to account for the risk upon reversionary and the estimation BEENBERAE  UFAHEEER
in vacancy rate after expiry of current lease. These significant unobservable HEMMERMERAEERH
inputs include: B BERMME - WEBEBKRAA
RS YN
Fair value
at 30th June Relationship of
2016 unobservable inputs
R=B-R% Valuation ~ Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=1H technique inputs unobservable inputs TABEAA
i ZRAEE fhERE  FABREAA FURERAEE HAABENBR
(HK$'000)
(FiEx)
Industrial building units - Hong Kong 95900 Income approach Rental value HK$8.62 - HK$10.16 per  The higher the rental value,
TEAEEM-FE method ME month per square feet the higher the fair value
WgiA BYhREAsET HESS RABEHS
ZE10168T
Yield rate 372% - 4.38% The higher the yield rate,
ZEX the lower the fair value
E8%H5 AAEEME
Car park units - Hong Kong 1,650 Income approach Rental value HK$8,000 per  The higher the rental value,
FEf-FH method il month per unit the higher the fair value
WegiA BEUEAB0ET BEMS ALEEES
Yield rate [1.64% The higher the yield rate,
ZEX the lower the fair value

E8%H5 AAEEME
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|7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
(c)  Valuation techniques (Continued)

e M IBHmRMEE

REWNEA)
© HERME)

Fair value
at 30th June Relationship of
2016 unobservable inputs
RZE-RE Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=1H technique inputs unobservable inputs FABEAA
it ZRAEE fhERE  FIREBA AUBRBAEE HRABENBR
(HK$'000)
(F#7r)
Commercial office units and 8500 Income approach Rental value RMB64.64-RMBI6.91 per  The higher the rental value,
apartment - PRC method month per square meter the higher the fair value
ARRREEN - PE Wik BE STAREA649%9 HEES LAEESS
ARE
Yield rate 3527%-498% The higher the yield rate,
ZEX the lower the fair value

During the year, the valuation techniques of certain investment properties

located in the PRC adopted income approach (2015: market comparable

approach) in the view that these properties were rented out as at 30th June

2016.

ERXERE - DAEBELE

R-F-RENA=1H  B¥D
fireh BlA0 1% & W3 IE R 1 tH AR
B AURKREER  ZERE
ME AW EDE 2 fHERMETEE
(Z2—1F: MEALBNE)
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7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(c)  Valuation techniques (Continued)

17 REWX#E)

© I1HERT(E)

Fair value
at 30th June Relationship of
2015 unobservable inputs
R_E-1%F Valuation Unobservable Range of to fair value
Description ~A=TH technique inputs unobservable inputs TABEBA
it MEE fbERkl  FTBREHA A EREAGE HRABENER
(HK$'000)
(Fi&7)
Industrial building units - Hong Kong 94000 Income approach Rental value HK$6.76 - HK$9.32 per  The higher the rental value,
IXAEEf-F# method A month per square feet the higher the fair value
Mg % BYIREA6I6ET HEES RAEBEES
FINAT
Yield rate 297% - 4.10% The higher the yield rate,
ZEX the lower the fair value
ERXERE - DAEBELE
Car park units - Hong Kong 1,600 Income approach Rental value HK$7,725 per  The higher the rental value,
FEf-F% method MME month per unit the higher the fair value
YaiA BENGATISAT MESR AAEEES
Yield rate 11.59% The higher the yield rate,
X the lower the fair value
SEHUS AABEUE
Commercial office units and 4665 Income approach Rental value RMB6098 per  The higher the rental value,
apartment - PRC method e month per square meter the higher the fair value
BRBAEEN - PHE gk BEHRGROBARE HELS ALEELS
Yield rate 326% The higher the yield rate,
X the lower the fair value

Commercial office units and
apartment - PRC
ES N sl
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SRS - DA EEBE

RMB23,975 per The higher the price per

square meter square meter,
FEARBIBARK the higher the fair value
FYIKBESR

MEEES



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

G EMBRRMEE

|7 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 17 BREW=#E)
(d)  As at 30th June 2016, the fair value of investment properties pledged (d RZFE-RFAA=1TH KED
as security for the Group's banking facilities amounted to approximately FREFE#29977,000% (=

T—FF 293830008 ) B K
BYHRT BREERGETE
EO

HK$29,977,000 (2015: HK$29,383,000).

(e)  The future aggregate minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable (e) WREDIHENLEHEE KRR
EEKAEREMAT

operating leases are as follows:

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THT
Not later than one year —FRQ 2,846 3,323
Later than one year and not later than five years —FRETERNAF 831 442
3,677 4,765
I8 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 B|EEE

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TEx

Technical know-how SR psIE]
Cost N 4,000 4,000
Accumulated amortisation R (2,000) (2,000)
Accumulated impairment ZETRE (2,000) (2,000)
Net book amount REHE — —

RBEE-_ZE-RAR-_Z—~"EX A=t
ALEFER  EEERIEMAZ 2T
WEEELRASHEREERNATEERRK
AR KE - Bt FEL2ERE -

During the year ended 30th June 2016 and 2015, the Directors assessed the
recoverability of the technical know-how and considered that the carrying value
of the technical know-how cannot be recovered through its future use and full

provision was made.
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20

19 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET 19 AHEHERKEE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TEx
At st July iNac S 2,000 2,000
Net gains transferred to equity LS e ol b — T
At 30th June RAA=+A 2,000 2,000
Available-for-sale financial asset represents a 3.6% (2015: 3.6%) equity interest AHEENBEERRNERBRE L ##
in an unlisted company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. The amount is SER P A i VNI WACE A Y G
denominated in HK dollar. —hF - BRZZEHN )R LEE
ABTTREN -
SUBSIDIARIES 20 KIBAH
The details of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2016 are disclosed in Note RZE-—RERAZTHEHNFENRELR
34, AR MIEE 34 R -
(@) Matenial non-controlling interests (a) EBERBHFEHEm

The total non-controlling interest as at 30th June 2016 was HK$20,384,000
(2015: HK$21,336,000), of which HK$23,094,000 (2015: HK$23,540,000) is
attributable to Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics Materials Limited (“NHEPML").
The non-controlling interests in respect of other subsidiaries were not

matenial.

Significant restrictions

Cash and bank deposits of NHEPML of HK$ 1,690,000 (2015: HK$1,163,000)
were held in the PRC and were subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provided for restrictions on
exporting capital from the region, other than through normal dividends or

remittance of revenue income through import/export companies.
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il # % 48 %8 420,384,000/ 7L(=

T — R F 213360008 ) £
F123,0940008 T(Z T — R 5§ :
235400008 T ) BRRATRE
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H At B A 7 B bl
AEK o

EARA
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20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)  Matenal non-controlling interests (Continued)

e M IBHmRMEE

20 MEBEAEE)
@) BAMFE ()

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non- A EERHPERIE w918 2 A4
controlling interests HEHFEH
Set out below are the summarised financial information for the subsidiary AT PE RS S EE AT
that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group. HEMEARNEEREER -
Summarised balance sheet BHELEREX
NHEPML
REIREH
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THT
Current E
Assets BE 86,731 100,968
Liabilities BfE (38,837) (57,477)
Current net assets FRBEE 47,894 43491
Non-current JEmE
Assets B 49,324 55,892
Liabilities BE (183) (472)
Non-current net assets FERBEE 49,141 55,420
Net assets FEE 97,035 9891 |
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20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20 MEQRHE)
(a)  Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (@) EBEAHHFRE (E)
Summanised income statement and statement of comprehensive income BERZZRE O W m %
NHEPML
REIRER
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Revenue ezs 183,684 189,179
Profit before income tax BRECAT R A 9,163 8,369
Income tax expense HIEX (2,671) (1,068)
Post-tax profit BRI R A 6,492 7,301
Other comprehensive income Hitira W (1,649) —
Total comprehensive income el es 4,843 7,301
Total comprehensive income el BEER
allocated to non-controlling interests el 1,153 1,738
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest S PR RS (1,599) (1,904)
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20 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 20 KMEBARME)
(a)  Material non-controlling interests (Continued) (@) EBEAHHFRER (E)
Summarised cash flows HERE R
NHEPML
RETRER
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TiET
Cash flows from operating activities REZFBZHLR
Cash generated from operations REXBHEEZRE 25,491 5671
Income tax paid gt (1,177) (3,206)
Net cash generated from operating activities REXBMEEZFHE 24314 2465
Net cash used in investing activities REZBMERZFR S (5,090) (8,306)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing activities ~ B & EBFT(FER)/ EXZFRE (22,981) 9,992
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents BekBReFB2ZOND),/ 18 (3,757) 4,151
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FzHekReFHE 6,947 2,796
Currency translation differences BN AR (331) —
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRZAERAEHE 2,859 6947
The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations. A EBHERFE A RIS AR
B o
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21 INVENTORIES 2l RE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRET TEx
Trading stocks BEIEBEER 123,103 167,337
Raw materials R 69,996 80984
Finished goods B 35472 39,464
228,571 287,785
The cost of inventories recognised as expenses and included in cost of sales in the PR & W ES R N 3E B AR P 1 B R R
consolidated income statement amounted to approximately HK$1,316,497,000 XZBEERAE LR 316497,0007%
(2015: HK$1,423,693,000). TL(ZZE—A%F : 1423,693,000%87T)
Provision for inventories amounted to HK$2,016,000 (2015: reversal of provision AEEXRFEEE201600ET(ZE
for HK$3,006,000) for the year was included in cost of sales in the consolidated — R B %EE3,0060008TT) 2 F
income statement. SREEE TRESRERANEER
NN
Inventories amounting to HK$ 142,102,000 (2015: HK$189,832,000) were held & #£142,102000% T(Z T — h F -
under the trust receipts bank loan arrangements. 189,832,000/ L) Z FERZE W IRR
TERZLHREE -
22  TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 22 ESRURKRERRE
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THT
Trade receivables B 5 UK 222,098 253263
Less: provision for impairment of receivables B EUEURE R (4,738) (4,700)
217,360 248,563
Bills receivable S 30,726 27948
248,086 276511
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22  TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 2 BSRWRKEWRE#)
The carrying amount of trade receivables are denominated in the following B IRYGRH R BN TS AEN -
currencies:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr THET
HK$ BT 62,232 73479
RMB ARE 138,713 155,303
usD XL 21,153 2448
222,098 253263
The carrying value of trade receivables approximates their fair values. BIRNF c REEREAREERLD -
There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables as the AR AEEREREREZEFE  IUE
Group has a large number of customers. FREFYBEEROHET 2ER -
The majority of the Group's sales were made with credit terms of 30 to 90 days. AEBARBOHHEENEERR=TE
The remaining amounts are on letter of credit or bank's acceptance bill. The ageing NTH ERAERRIBTALESR
analysis of trade receivables by invoice date is as follows: ARET - BEHRUKEETB 2 RR
ki UINE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TET
Below 90 days 0-90 H 201,736 230,126
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 11,478 15,544
Over 180 days 838 180 H 8,884 7,593
222,098 253263
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22  TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)
As of 30th June 2016, trade receivables of HK$43,463,000 (2015: HK$51,318,000)
were past due but not considered to be impaired. The credit quality of trade
receivables neither past due nor impaired has been assessed by reference to
historical information about the counterparty default rates. These relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default.

The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

22

ESRURRERRE &)
RZZE—REXAZTH EHEKX
43,463,000 8L (ZF—HEF : 51,318,000
AL EEBHRELRHNE - RS SN
RENEFRBRNEEEERERS
EZEHU AR ENREERETT
- WEFBEPRZEKMIAHRE
HaBNBIER - LS8 HEITH
BRECAITINT -

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET

Past due by i A
| - 30 days [-30 H 29,218 34,358
31 - 60 days 31-60 B 7,708 ['1,760
Over 60 days i 60 B 6,537 5,200
43,463 51,318

As of 30th June 2016, trade receivables of HK$4,738,000 (2015: HK$4,700,000)
were impaired. The amount of the provision was HK$4,738,000 (2015:
HK$4,700,000). The individually impaired trade receivables mainly relate to a
number of independent customers which are in unexpected difficult economic

situations. Majority of these trade receivables have been past due by more than

360 days (2015: 360 days).
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RN e
22  TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 22 BZERUNREWEE@E)
Movement in the provision for impairment of trade receivables for the Group is as AEE B HRIGUREREZSHNT -
follows:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR
At beginning of the year F9 4,700 3,489
Provision for impairment AR 400 1,340
Write-off during the year AREEZ MR (137) (129)
Currency translation differences R (225) =
At end of the year FR 4,738 4,700
Bills receivable are mainly with maturity period of within 180 days and are BUZEZEZINBBEFER—BNATH
denominated in the following currencies: A WATHERRELN -
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TRT
HK$ BT 158 1239
usD XL 456 1,126
RMB ARE 30,112 25,583
30,726 27,948
The carrying value of bills receivable approximates their fair values and there is no ERZEE7ERAEHEEARBEROR
recent history of default on bills receivable. RITWERMER 2 R
Certain subsidiaries of the Group transferred certain bank’s acceptance bills RZEBE-—RESAA=ZTREAEEZINE
amounting to approximately HK$20,594,000 (2015: HK$9,583,000) with recourse DA A 20594000 BTL(ZTE—RHF -
in exchange for cash as at 30th June 2016. The transactions have been accounted 9,583,000 75 70 ) B8R 1778 5 [E Z8EIR T 4F
for as collateralised bank advances (Note 28). TRHRBRE - BEXHEI RER

RSRITE R (PT5E28) o

Annual Report % [ ¥ & 2015/2016 | 127



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRME

22 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 2 BSRUWRKEWRE#)
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the ERERH  FRARRNKSRARAR
carrying values of the receivables (2015: same). Other than the bank's acceptance ARINGERNFNEABE(ZE -1
bills collateralised as bank advances, the Group does not hold any collateral as £ ER) - RER TRITUABRRREH
security. RITHRLEZEIN - AEETF A ERIME
RERNERRD -
23 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 23 fTHEEmIA
2016 2015
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
EE =L BE a8f&

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
TR TR TAT TAL

Held for trading BELE
- Forward foreign exchange contracts (Note) —INEEREE L () — 584 [11 14,554
Note: BfaE
Forward foreign exchange contracts INEE 3R B 4
As at 30th June 2016, the Group had outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts mainly to RZZE—R"EAA=+AH  FEBERIBHN
purchase USD (2015: sell/purchase USD and purchase RMB). The maximum notional principal ERBMANTENEZTL(—Z—HF: 5/
amounts of these outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts at 30th June were as follows: BETREARE) RAAZTHEERR
YWHNEEHA N Z RBREATELT :
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR
Sell HK$ for USD HEBTAEART 561,600 2,269,800
Sell USD for HK$ HEXRTIAEART — 15,600
Sell USD for RMB HEETUABEAARS — 1,070,628
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ZFEMBIRFRMEE
24 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 24 BERBITEH
Cash and cash equivalents (a) HeRHE-EE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAT
Cash on hand Rekts 895 999
Bank balances RITEEBR 72,926 87,049
73,821 88,048

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following currencies:

ReRROTEHATIEERE

fir :
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FAT
HK$ BT 7,407 10,092
RMB AR 60,182 59,435
UsD ET 6,021 18,265
Others Hih 211 256
73,821 88,048

Cash at bank eamns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit

rates.

The Group's cash and bank balances of HK$60,483,000 (2015:
HK$56,250,000) are deposited with banks in the PRC. The remittance of

these funds out of the PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions

imposed by the PRC government.

RITRBREGARTERZZE

MR EREUH 2. @

AEBcRERBITERHA

60,483,000 (= & — R F:

56,250,000 TT) R B 2 R1T 45
FoBEHRERELTHEIRRA
BT B it 2 N B LA A6
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24 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued) 24 BERBITHER
(b)  Restricted bank deposits (b) RRHERITIEA
As at 30th June 2016, RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to HK$23,256,000) ZZ-RERAAR=TH  AR®

20,000,000 7T(%  fE23,256,0007%
TNZZE—0F:B)RXRH
WRITER - FRRRITERR
TREBEREXNEEREHE
28) - RBHIMRITERUDNEF
BAZHtA(ZE—R1F : &)
ZETEHE  UREEABRAN
FIRHRDR+ (@A -

(2015: Nil) are restricted deposits held at bank as reserve for serving of
debt for revolving loans provided by the bank (Note 28). The restricted
bank deposits carry fixed interest rate at 1.75% (2015: Nil) per annum with

remaining maturity less than twelve months after the balance sheet date.

25 TRADE PAYABLES 25 BFZEAX
ABREERBALER S £ TAEE
ZER-BRR=TZENTH-

A majority of the suppliers are on open account. Certain suppliers grant credit

period of 30 to 90 days to the Group.

BIRNFRERAZREAMMT -

The ageing analysis of the trade payables by invoice date is as follows:

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Below 90 days 0-90 H 71,615 70,798
91 - 180 days 91-180 H 172 148
Over 180idays 38180 B 1,088 873
72,875 71,819

The carrying values of trade payables approximate their fair values, and are BIRNRCEEHERE AR BEM

denominated in the following currencies: A WATHIEEREN -

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAT

HK$ BT 4377 458
RMB AR 22,739 26,819
UsD ETT 45,742 40,364
Singapore dollar IR TT 17 55
72,875 71819
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26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 26 BRERRAEZE
Share capital Bx
Number
of ordinary  Share capital
shares of nominal
HK$0.10 each value
BREE BRAHEE
0.1082 HK$’000
EERYE TER
Authorised: EERA -
At Ist July 2014, 30th June 2015, RZE-MFELA—H ZF—01%F
st July 2015 and 30th June 2016 ANA=+H - ZZE—-REtHA—H
k=E—R"¥~A=TH 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: EETRARRA -
At Ist July 2014, 30th June 2015, RZE—NE+tA—H —F—8%F
Ist July 2015 and 30th June 2016 ANA=+H - ZZ-AFtA-BAK
—E-R"¥XA=t+H 369,200,000 36,920
Share premium REEE
HK$'000
TER
At Ist July 2014, 30th June 2015, A—E-—NE+A—H  —E-RFEAA=FH"
It July 2015 and 30th June 2016 “E-RFtA-HR-ZE—A"FEASA=1H 62,466
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27 RESERVES 27 R
Other reserves
HbGE
Available-
Share Capital forsale  Exchange
option reserve financial asset  fluctuation
reserve (Note) ~ Revaluation reserve reserve Retained Total
BR  EAREH reserve B EX  Sbtonl  eamings
Bae (ME) EfR% BERR  KERE Nt REEN aE
HK$000  HK§000  HK$O000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
TEn  TEn Téxn  TEr  TEn  TEx  TER  TEn
At IstJuly 2014 R=2-mE+A-A 415 408 7590 1310 72158 81,88 20592 348
Profitfor the year AERN - - = = = = 25205 2525
Currency translation differences 353 - - = = I I = I
Share options [apsed BB (415) - - - - (415) 415 -
At 30th June 2015 RZF-RE, A=1A - 408 7590 1310 72169 81477 316232 397,709
At IstJuly 2015 RZ2-15tA-H - 408 7590 1310 7,169 81477 316232 397,709
Logs for the year AEBE - - — = = — (640 (649
Currency translation differences EXER - - - - (31,781) (31,781) - (31,781)
Disposal of nterests in subsidiaries NERREAHEOMBEAA
without change of control (Note 35) EmEE (W) - 207 - - - 207 - 207
201412015 fina dividend paid FH-E-W/-F-REERERE = = = - - = (369) (369)
At 30th june 2016 RZF-~ERR=TH = 615 7590 1310 40,388 9903 86048 355
Note: Bzt
Included in the capital reserve of the Group is HK$408,000 (2015: HK$408,000), representing the REE 7 BARERE4080008T (ZF—h

aggregate amount of the non-voting deferred shares of Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited

and the difference between the nominal amount of the share capital issued by the Company

in exchange for the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the subsidiaries acquired

pursuant to the group reorganisation in 1994 (the “Reorganisation”).

The remaining HK$207,000 (2015: Nil) represents the capital reserve arising from the disposal of

interests in subsidiaries without change of control during the year (Note 35).
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e MR RMEE
28 BORROWINGS 28 fEE
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TERT
Current borrowings mEEE
Bank loans due for repayment within one year — secured FR—FABRIRITENR -
(Note 3.1(e)) BEB(HE31(E) 107,366 107,725
Bank loans due for repayment after one year which containa  HR—FREZBRSRERER
repayment on demand clause — secured (Note 3.1(e)) B 2 BITEH - AEA
(HH5E3.1(e)) 626 850
Trust receipt loans due for repayment within FR—FNEBREZEARBEER -
one year — secured (Note 3.1(e)) BHEA(E3.1(E)) 142,102 189,832
Bank advances for discounted bills (Note 22) RITRRERBT (M 22) 20,594 9,583
Bank overdrafts — secured RITEX - BEA 10,155 9479
Total borrowings mEE 280,843 317,469

The carrying amount of the Group's borrowings approximates their fair values AEERECREERE AR BEM
as the impact of discounting is not significant. The Group's borrowings are & SIED(T?'JE?MZ%EE
denominated in the following currencies:
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
TRz THET
HK$ BT 83,893 199,104
RMB ARE 71,537 74325
usD RTT 125,413 43841
Euro BT - 199
280,843 317,469
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fRE

RZE—R"FEANA=Z+H AEEMHR
TEFHERAFHEE -

28 BORROWINGS (Continued) 28

At 30th June 2016, all of the Group's bank borrowings are wholly repayable within

five years.

The amounts repayable based on the scheduled repayment date set out in the loan BREERBERRRERENRXTE

agreements ignoring the effect of any repayment on demand clause are as follows:

REFBABRCEREESHENT -

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TR
Within | year —ER 280,217 316619
Between | to 2 years —FEMEF 626 850
280,843 317,469

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate changes and the weighted REERBRAREBZ ERHANEE

average interest rates at the balance sheet date are as follows: PR R EFaMEQNT :

2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR
— at fixed rates —EEF % 260,891 300900
— at floating rates —F B = 19,952 16,569
280,843 317,469
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28 BORROWINGS (Continued) 28 fBE#)
2016 2015
HK$ RMB usb EUR HK$ RMB usb EUR
BT ARY EY BT BT ARE e BT

Trust receipt loans ERIEER 261% — 2.63% — 2.50% — 228% —
Short-term bank loans RERITER 2.14% 6.39% — — 248% 7.15% — 1.50%
Bank overdrafts RITEX 500%  6.95% — —  500%  7.70% — —
Bank advances for discounted bills FITRRBRBN — 3.77% — — — 498% — -
Bank borrowings are secured by certain property, plant and equipment (Note 15), RIETUREELINYE - BER
leasehold land and land use rights (Note |6), inventories (Note 21), restricted bank REPNFE5) « ME L3 K 1 015 i
deposits (Note 24 (b)) and investment properties (Note 17) of the Group. (MizE16) ~ FE(HE21) - XRHAR

TR 24(0)) KRB MR (B 17)

RER
The bank advances for discounted bills with recourse have been accounted for R BEREBAZEUR FRITHE
as collateralised bank advances. The discounted bank’s acceptance bills and the RITBRFEINAERCRRITER - R
related proceeds of the same amount are included in the Group's trade and bills BERBRAMERRRTALESRE
receivables (Note 22) and short-term borrowings respectively at the end of the REBZABAERDHNEERASE
reporting period. 2B SRR MR E (M5 22) k&

HEE -
DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29 EREHRE

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current income tax
liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxation authority.
The following amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the

consolidated balance sheet:

ERATARTENSHAENAEER
AARRAGERE  BEERERIR
F—BREE - IR BELEREHEE
HEEEEMREKE Bt ABBEER
TIEBREERBERAIIR :

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FHET

Deferred income tax assets EERIBEE 6,052 5990
Deferred income tax liabilities RERIEAE (6,151) (5976)
(99) |4

Annual Report % £ # & 2015/2016 | 135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

eV BRRM T

29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The net movement on the deferred income tax is as follows:

29 EEFEE)
BERRTHMEHEEOFESOT :

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TR

At beginning of the year F1 14 (427)
(Charged)/credited to consolidated income statement TR e ek (k) /FH A (B 10)

(Note 10) (92) 441
Currency translation differences EHER (21 —
At end of the year FR (99) 14
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the year, FRELCHEEENAEZEH(EHRF—
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax BRI E 2 AR AT I T
jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities: BERBRIE -
Fair value gains on Accelerated
investment properties tax depreciation Total
RENEQABERS MEBHFE it
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HKF0O00 HK$000  HK$000
T TER TExr TER TExr TER
At beginning of the year &2 650 1,610 6,232 6,110 6,882 7,720
(Credited)/charged to TiRaRaER(GIA),/

consolidated income ik

statement (30) (960) 313 122 283 (838)
Currency translation R ER

differences (52) — (357) — (409) —
At end of the year ER 568 650 6,188 6,232 6,756 6,882
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 29 EEREE)
Deferred income tax assets: RERIBEE

Decelerated

Provisions Tax losses tax depreciation Total

%5 BEEE HEB I ITE i
2006 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$O00 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000
FRxT THr THx TET Tz TEr TFTEx TAx
At beginning of the year F9) 4006 4241 1,047 1047 1843 2005 689 7293

Credited/(charged) to consolidated EFARERIAS

income statement ($0BR) 74 (235) @) — 159 (162) 191 (397)
Currency translation differences Pt (241) = (40) = (149) — (430) —
At end of the year FX 3839 4006 965 1047 1853 1843 6657  68%

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future taxable
profits is probable. At 30th June 2016, the Group had unrecognised tax losses
to be carried forward against future taxable income amounted to approximately
HK$242,401,000 (2015: HK$179,329,000). These tax losses have no expiry date
except that approximately HK$10,970,000 (2015: HK$2,232,000) will expire
from 2017 to 2021 (2015: 2015 to 2018). The potential deferred income tax
assets in respect of these tax losses which have not been recognised amounted to
approximately HK$40,929,000 (2015: HK$29,779,000).

As at 30th June 2016, deferred income tax has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to unremitted profits eamned by certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting
to approximately HK$153,480,000 (2015: HK$148,752,000) as the Group is able
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

REENTEEBMERNETHE
MEEEBRREBLHBNEE TR
BARKERTBANEROHD - B
—E-AEANAZHH AEELE
PR A AR SRR R e B
% BB 4242401008 T(ZT—H
F:1793290008 ) BRBELEFTEH
EEK4092900F L(ZFE—HF:
29779,00087) c T —+FZ_-F
T—H(ZE-RF: ZT-hHFE-Z
—\F) BB B EEL A 10,970,000
BIL(ZT—RF :2,23200087T) °

R-ZE—R"EXNAZ+H REFLX
HETHRENE QA ZERIKERS
F £ 491534800008 T(Z T —HF -
148,752,000 /8 7T ) < & s = B {EIR LTI
B AASEAEHZEEREREL
BEIEE - WRRARZBERZSER
EREA gD -
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30 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 30 REREREXR
(a)  Recondiliation of (loss)/profit before income tax to net cash generated from (@) BRBAER)SHEgEEKE
operations: R E AR
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THEL
(Loss)/profit before income tax Han(&8),/ &7 (14,068) 34,570

Adjustments for: FHEIER
— Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W% BERRETE 18,394 17,561
— Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment —HENE  BEREE KR (165) (280)
— Amortisation of leasehold land and land use rights —HETH R (P R 767 715
— Fair value changes on derivative financial —“HEEBEITEERMIAL
instruments held for trading NAEBEEZE (13,847) (19,938)
— Fair value gains on investment properties —-REMENRARBEKE (1,738) (1,516)
— Provision for impairment of trade receivables, net —B RN EER —F8 400 1,340
— Provision for/(reversal of) impairment of ~FEREEE/(BE)
inventories, net — 8 2,016 (3,006)
— Interest income Sl ON (233) (321)
— Interest expense —FMEZH 11,098 11,136
Changes in working capital: BEELE
— Inventories -FE 44,091 (1,692)
— Trade and bills receivables, other receivables, —BORNFRERER
prepayments and deposits Hip MR - BER kRS 29,524 (8595)
— Trade payables, other payables and deposits —BHREMNT - BEMNR
received and accruals kEfETe kERER 2,537 (19,709)
Cash generated from operations REXBEE 2B 78,776 10,265
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30 CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued) 30 RERERERMS

(b)  Inthe consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from sales of property, () TEEEBREREXRA  HEWE -
plant and equipment comprise: B MR BRI TS R
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
T THET
Net book amount (Note 15) AREFE (M 15) 5 59
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - B K&z e (HEEs)
(Note 8) 165 280
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEME « BiE RXEMER
and equipment 170 339
(c)  Forthe purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash () BEEHERERME  HeakB
equivalents include the following: SEHEBFEUTER
2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR
Cash and bank balances (Note 24) Re RR1TEA (M 24) 73,821 88,048
Bank overdrafts (Note 28) RITE X (M 28) (10,155) (9.479)
63,666 78,569
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31 COMMITMENTS
(a)  Capital commitments
At 30th June 2016, the Group had the following capital commitments for
addition of property, plant and equipment:

31

I

() EFFAE
R-Z—~"EXA=1+H £58
BEBEY%E  BERREIERRE
LI

2016 2015

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TR

Contracted but not provided for BEROBRER 4,111 4,087

(b)  Commitment under operating leases
As at 30th June 2016, the Group had future aggregate minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of land and

buildings as follows:

(b) HEHEAE
R-ZE—A"F~A=1H X£E
BRTFIEREIE 2 AR+ Rkig
FLAHBEERE 2 RRED
HERR -

2016 2015

HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TAET

Not later than one year —FR 4,326 2,095
Later than one year and not later than five years —FRENERAE 5,529 3,380
Later than five years ikt — 138
9,855 5613
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32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32 BREALRS
The Group is controlled by Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the AL B Good Benefit Limited (TE B E
British Virgin Islands, which owns 53.3% of the Company's shares. The remaining THEEAMKL AR ES - HEEAR
46.7% of the shares were widely held. Substantially all of the shares of Good Benefit ARASZET=H=IK#E H®#RZA
Limited are beneficially owned by certain Directors of the Company. AT BT REREZIFA ° Good
Benefit Limited BE L A D BAEHAA
AZEBNEREHRA o
The Directors of the Company are regarded as key management of the Group and ARRMAESHRBERTEBCEE
details of compensation paid to them are disclosed in Note |4 to the consolidated EEAE  HFAHFME NG M BH
financial statements. RITEE 14558 -
In addition to those disclosed in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, Bréze MR (HaE 14) TR BN - B
the following transactions were carried out with related parties: BEATETNIHWT
2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET
Operating lease rentals paid to related parties: RNTEREALHERS
— Build Fair Limited (Note (i)) —RBEERAR (KE))) 158 —
— Shine Systems Limited (Note (i)) —BAREBRHARAT]
(BF=EGi)) 52 —
210 —

Notes:

0] Build Fair Limited is a company wholly owned by Mr HUI Sai Chung, a Director of the
Company.

(if) Shine Systems Limited is a company wholly owned by Mr HUI Kwok Kwong, a Director of
the Company.

Operating lease rentals paid to related parties are on normal commercial terms and

conditions.

B -

SRERAFBAAREREFERLL
2EHA -
BREBEMERARMARAEESF
BREEZEHER -

INFTEBEALOHERERE-R
[EELL S04tV
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33 ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors regard Good Benefit Limited, a company incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands, as being the ultimate holding company.

34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

33 BRAERKRAT

EERAEARAREERR A A Good
Benefit Limited (TE 2B fE X B B i A 3L

ZRF) e

34 FEMELT

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 30th June 2016: RZE-—REAA=1TH KRAlZE
EMBRAMT :
Place of Effective
incorporation/ Issued and fully percentage of
operation and paid up share capital/ equity held by
* kind of legal entity registered capital the Company
Name SRR BRTREZ Principal activites ~ RNATEFAZ
=1 R*E AR RAE/EREE IREHK BEERFEIL
Ngai Hing (International) British Virgin Islands US$100 Investment holding 100
Company Limited EBRES 100%7T REER
(Note b) (Ff&Eb)
Dongguan Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$93,200,000  Manufacture and sale of colorants 100
Materials Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 93,200,000/ 7T and compounded plastic resins
SREBB R enterprise BEREEECE K
= YNG i EEANBE
*HEBELER
Hong Kong Colour Hong Kong 500,000 Manufacture and trading of 100
Technology Limited BB ordinary shares of colorants and compounded
AEIXERAT HK$ | each plastic resins
500,000 & REREEERHR
B BT Rl
Ngai Hing Engineering Hong Kong 2,000,000 Manufacture of 762
Plastic Materials Limited o ordinary shares of engineering plastic
RETRREHARRAR HK$ 1 each products
2,000,000 & A RETHE
Bk 1B PREmM
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34 FEMBLE ()

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name B TR <y bt ERITRARE Principal activites ~ ADQFHEZ
£ R EAER BRAE/ERES IEXY BRREXESH
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 1,000 Investment holding and 100
Materials Limited oy ordinary shares of property holding
BRABBRHARAT HK$! each REERR
1,000 & 3@ RAENE
B BT
500,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HK$ | each (note c)
500,000 R 1
BIERER AT
(Fff&Ec)
Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Hong Kong 500,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Materials (Hong Kong) A ordinary shares of BEZBRH
Limited HK$ | each
BRELBREM(ER) 500,000 AR
BRAR Sk 157
Shanghai Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$34,400,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Co., Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 34,400,000 87T colorants and compounded

HEREERR enterprise plastic resins
BRAF P E BERHEE B
*SNEBELE REA=R Rl
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34 FEMELE ()

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

Effective
percentage of
equity held by

the Company

Name SRR ERITRHAE Principal activites ~ AATEFEZ
#8 R+ ENER BRAEERES IREH BERREXEIL
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing Plastic The PRC HK$10,500,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Materials Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 10,500,000 % 7T colorants and compounded
EERAEBRREM enterprise plastic resins
ARAF P BERHEEBT
*INEBELR K& &R R
NHH Coltec Limited Hong Kong 5,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
REEZERAA A ordinary shares of plastic products
HK$! each BER
5,000 & A% HELBEM
BRIAT
Ngai Hing Engineering The PRC US$200,000 Trading of engineering 762
Plastics (Shanghai) Co,, Ltd. ~ * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 7T plastic products
RETRBR enterprise EETRVBER
(LEB)BRAR 5
*NEBELRE
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic The PRC US$200,000 Manufacture of engineering 762
Materials (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.  * wholly foreign-owned 200,000 % 7T plastic products
RITRRER(LE) enterprise BETRREBEM
AR a2
*SNEBELRE
Tsing Tao Ngai Hing The PRC US$ 100,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 100,000 € 7T compounded plastic resins
BEERERE enterprise BEEGH
NG R REE A
*SNEBELE
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34 FEMBLE ()

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name B TR <y bt ERITRARE Principal activites ~ ADQFHEZ
#8 R EAER BRAE/ERES FREK BRRFEIL
Ngai Hing Engineering Plastic Hong Kong 1,000,000 Trading of engineering 762
(Hong Kong) Limited oy ordinary shares of plastic products
BRETREM(FE) HK$! each EETREBER
BRAT 1,000,000 & 3@ AR
B BT
Xiamen Ngai Hing Hong The PRC US$200,000 Manufacture and sale of 100
Plastic Materials Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 200,000% 7T colorants and compounded
EPIRETERBRE enterprise plastic resins
BRAF I RENHEEBHR
*NEBELE EEA NN
Guangzhou Ngai Sog Hing The PRC RMB 10,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 10,000,000 A R#& BEBRBRE
BMMREEE 5 enterprise
AR B
*SNEBELE
Shanghai Ngai Sog Hing The PRC US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 400,000 7T EEBRBEM
LiERBEER enterprise
REBEBRAE 3
*NEBEALE
NHH Biodegradable Plastics Hong Kong 10,000 Manufacture and sale of 85
Company Limited B8 ordinary shares of biodegradable plastic
RERREHBRAR] HK$ | each materials
10,000 & A RERHE
B IET RREBRE
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 34 FEMELE ()

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully

paid up share capital/

registered capital

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name HMAIL, BRTRER Principal activities ~ AATHFHZ
#8 R EAER BRAE/ERES FREK BRRFEIL
Ngai Hing Engineering The PRC HK$8,000,000 Trading of engineering 762
Plastics (Dongguan) Co,, Ltd.  * wholly foreign-owned 8,000,000 7T plastic products
RERTTZEE enterprise EETREVBER
AR A
*INEBELE
Shanghai Coltec Plastic The PRC US$200,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 200,000% 7T compounded plastic resins
tEEEER enterprise BEEGHK
BHARAH I & B AN
*NEBELE
Dongguan Coltec Plastic The PRC HK$3,000,000 Trading of colorants and 100
Trading Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 87T compounded plastic resins
REEZER enterprise BEEGRHR
BHARAH P Rl
*SEBELF
NHH Worldwide Logistics Hong Kong 1,000,000 Logistics Service 739
Limited oy ordinary shares of W AR
RERRYRARAR HK$ I each
1,000,000 & &A%
FRIET
Tianjin Ngai Sog Hing The PRC US$400,000 Trading of plastic materials 100
Trading Co,, Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 400,000 3% 7T BEEZBRH
RERE R enterprise
HEARLA o
*ONEBERE
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/
operation and

* kind of legal entity

Issued and fully
paid up share capital/

registered capital

34 FEWBLF (A

Effective
percentage of
equity held by
the Company

Name B TR <y bt ERITRARE Principal activites ~ ADQFHEZ
£ R EAER BRAE/ERES IEXY BRREXESH
NHH Investment Limited Hong Kong 10,000 Investment holding 100

(previously known as oy ordinary shares of REZR

Letibe Limited) HKS$! each
BETRABRAR 10,000 &A%

(314 : RTARAR) R 157
Guangzhou Ngai Hing Hong ~ The PRC RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100

Plastic Materials Ltd. * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 AR #& BEEZRBRF
BMNTRETEBRRY enterprise

AR B

*NEBELE

Chongging Ngai Hing The PRC RMB3,000,000 Trading of plastic materials 100

Hong Plastic Materials Ltd.  * wholly foreign-owned 3,000,000 A R#& BEBRBRE
BEMRAETEBRRH enterprise

AR B

*SEBELF
ILS Logistics Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary share of Logistics Service 739
BEMRARAR BB HK$ ! each W7 AR5
100 E BB 1 BT
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34 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Notes:

@

()

All the subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong and BVI are limited liability companies. All

subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly foreign-owned enterprises.

Other than Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited, which is directly held by the

Company, all the principal subsidiaries listed above are indirectly held by the Company.

The holders of the non-voting deferred shares in Ngai Hing Hong Plastic Materials Limited
(“NHHPML") shall not be entitled to any participation in the profits or surplus assets of
NHHPML and they are not entitled to receive notice of or attend or vote at any general

meeting of NHHPML in respect of their holdings of such deferred shares.

Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited has been granted an option by the holders of
the non-voting deferred shares to acquire these shares for an aggregate cash consideration
of HK$4.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
Directors, principally affected the results of the year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

In order to simplify the group structure of Engineering plastics segment in Shanghai,
during the year ended 30th June 2016, Ngai Hing Engineering Plastics (Shanghai) Co.,
Ltd. (“EP(SH)") ceased its business operation and becomes inactive. Accordingly, all of its
distnibutable profits had been distributed and remitted to its immediate holding company,
NHEPML, during the year and thus, PRC withholding tax on dividend distribution of
HK$219,000 was incurred accordingly.
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35 TRANSACTIONS WITH NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

(a)  Disposal of interest in subsidiaries without loss of control

During the year, the Group disposed of 10.1% of effective interest in each
of NHH Worldwide Logistics Limited (“NHWL") and ILS Logistics Limited
("ILS") at a consideration of HK$120,000 and HK$12 respectively. The
carrying amounts of the effective interest disposed in NHWL and ILS on the
date of disposal were HK$78,000 and HK$9,000 respectively. The Group
recognised a decrease in non-controlling interests of HK$87,000 and an
increase in equity attributable to owners of the Company of HK$207,000.
The effect of changes in the ownership interest of NHWL and ILS on the
equity attributable to owners of the Company during the year is summarised

as follows:

35
@)

e M IBHmRMEE

RFRHEEENRS

HENTE 2
#)
REAEERN AEEH
120,000 7T & 128 T2 KB
REREMRAR DA%
1) R BB A R AR (A
WMRDBAZ TH— 2 BRER
BREYREREANREE L E
BREZNEEAHRNREBS R
57800078 7T & 9,000 7T ° A&
BRI M i 2R > 87,000 78
T GEREARMEENERE
AN207,0007% 7T © 2R E YR K Bl A
MRHFEERANEHHFNE
BRALDBMEENERN T 2
E3 N

Az (TXEER

Bl A
&
=8y

/ Ife E\I

=
"
il

2016 2015
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THET

Carrying amount of non-controlling interests HE RN REE
disposed of 87 —
Consideration received from non-controlling interests B JEIZ il (£ i IR AT £ B 120 —
Gain on disposal within equity TR RP BRI EEF 207 —

There were no transactions with non-controlling interests during the year
ended 30th June 2015.

R-ZE—RFEAA=+HIEES
THMERETRS
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36 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 36 ZEAEE

REBEZZ-—"E~A=THLEE"
ARBEKRI-EPRMENTEEBER
12 A K 5,000,000 70 (% {& 5,814,000
BTIMNBRR - AREREEERUL
RRZERRRAEEARLERE -

During the year ended 30th June 2016, the Group received a claim from a
customer in respect of the sales of alleged defective goods with claim amount
approximately RMB5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$5,814,000). The legal adviser
of the Group on this claim is of the opinion that the Group has a good case to

defend. On this basis, the Directors consider that the claim will unlikely result in any

material financial impact on the Group. It EERAUBRIGHTEETR
BAHBTE -
37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 37 RARNEEEERREEEZD
THE COMPANY
Balance sheet BEEEX
2016 2015
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt TER FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets 3E/ﬁ§7)§§
Investmentsinsubsidaries  MWRAEEE N 2
Current assets MEEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE Wit B 2 R K 101,739 105,867
Other receivables Hfth FE MR 284 284
Cash and bank balances B e RIRITH 107 5]
102,130 106,202
Total assets BEE 164,841 168913
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to D AR A RN
the Company's equity holders K&
Share capital N 36,920 36,920
Share premium BRARE 62,466 62,466
Other reserves Hfth 37 (a) 62,511 62,511
Retained earnings RE & 37 (a) 2,376 6,258
Total equity B 164,273 168,155
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37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

37

e M IBHmRMEE

ARANEEERRNRESD (@)

Balance sheet (Continued) EELAX(#)
2016 2015
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt THER FAT
LIABILITIES &
Current liabilities mEaE
CAcorwdls o BEEE 68 758
Total equity and liabilities wRERRER 164,841 168913

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors on

27th September 2016 and were signed on its behalf

HUI Sai Chung HUI Kwok Kwong

et FHE X

Chairman Deputy Chairman and Managing Director
EY: BT EREFELE

ARAMEERBREHEZEN_-F
—REAAZTER#E IRKES

eRE

~

o\
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eV BRRM T

37 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note: (a) Reserve movement of the Company

37

Other reserves

ARANEERBRRRESD (@)

Wik ) ARAREE

Hitvfte
Contributed Share
surplus option
(Note) reserve Retained
EfEN BhRE Sub-total earnings Total
(FH&E) f#E Pt RERF aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FER FERT TR FET
At st July 2014 RZE—ME+A—H 62511 415 62926 2676 65,602
Profit for the year RE 5 Al — — — 3,167 3,167
Share options lapsed AR RELR || - (415) (415) 415 —
At 30th June 2015 RZZ-RAE A=1H 62511 — 62511 6258 68769
At st July 2015 RZE-RF+A—H 62511 — 62511 6,258 68,769
Loss for the year KEEB — — — (190) (190)
201412015 final dividend paid INZF-W/ZF-%
FERBRE — — — (3692) (3,692)
At 30th June 2016 RZZ—R"EAA=TH 62,511 — 62,511 2,376 64,887
Note: WisE

Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the consolidated

shareholders' funds of Ngai Hing (International) Company Limited at the date on which the

Reorganisation became effective and the nominal amount of the Company's shares issued under the

Reorganisation. At Group level the contributed surplus is reclassified into its components of reserves

of the underlying subsidiaries.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, contributed surplus is distributable to shareholders,

subject to the condition that the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution

out of contributed surplus if (i) it is, or after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due, or (i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the aggregate of its

liabilities and its issued share capital and share premium account.
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Five Year Financial Summary

AFMEGBE

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial years are as AEERBELEMBREEBF ¥E BB
follows: REEWMTE

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
HK$000  HK$000 ~ HK$O00 ~ HK000  HK$000
TERT TAT TAT TAT TAT

Results £
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity NERREN

holders of the Company (B#8),/&H (26,492) 25225 3,241 22,059 1,365
Assets and liabilities EERERE
Total assets BERE 847,339 959,403 953357 1,002,768 904,731
Total liabilities BERE (391,618)  (440972)  (460037)  (504609)  (433950)
Non-controlling interests Il (20,384) (21,336) 21461) (22,419) (23613)
Capital and reserves attributable NG EY AN

to the Company's equity holders G 435,337 497,095 471,859 475,740 447,168
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Company Directory
AEER

NGAI HING HONG COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Hong Kong Office:

Unit 3, 6th Floor, Hopeful Factory Centre,
10 Wo Shing Street,

Fo Tan, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2693 1663

Fax: (852) 2694 0877

Website: http://www.nhh.com.hk

E-mail address: info@nhh.com.hk

Hong Kong Factory:

No. 9 Dai Shun Street,

Tai Po Industrial Estate,

Tai Po, New Territories,

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2660 0208/2693 1772
Fax: (852) 2667 4831/2694 0017

Dongguan Factory:

Chiling Industrial Zone, Houjie Town,
Dongguan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 769-8558 8755  Zip: 523940
Fax: (86) 769-8558 1756
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B aE 1 (852) 2693 1663

fEE : (852) 2694 0877

B+ hitp://www.nhh.com.hk
BT ¢ info@nhh.com.hk
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Guangzhou Office:

A1806, Center Plaza,

No. 161 Linhe Road West,

Tianhe District,

Guangzhou,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 20-3831 0226  Zip : 510620
Fax: (86) 20-3831 0223

Shanghai Office:

Unit E, I 6th Floor,

Zhao Feng Universe Building,

No. 1800 Zhongshan West Road,
Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 21-6440 0997  Zip: 200235
Fax: (86) 21-6440 0977

Shanghai Factory:

No. 8100, Songze Ave.

Qingpu Industrial Zone,

Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 21-6921 3333 Zip: 201707
Fax: (86) 21-6921 5555

Qingdao Factory:

Haier (Jiaozhou) International Industrial Zone,
Jiaozhou ECO & TECH Development Zone, Qingdao,

The People's Republic of China
Tel: (86) 532-8727 3100  Zip: 266300
Fax: (86) 532-8727 3110

Company Directory

AEliER

RANBER :
g ARAE

B
K

AT 161 5%

R BIR 55 A 1806

EiE ¢ (86) 20-3831 0226 EEARSE 1 510620
fEE : (86) 20-3831 0223

LBREE
hEARANE

i3]

AL P 1800 5%
kLB AE

|6 12 E 2

FiE ¢ (86) 21-6440 0997  EHARYE 1 200235
fHE : (86) 21-6440 0977

st

hEE AR EHE

Ligm

BRIXEE

FAEKE 81005%

FiE  (86) 21-6921 3333 EEUARSE 1 201707
fEE : (86) 21-6921 5555

BERIL -
hE AR EHE
EEBMNEERMHAER

BRBMNBERIXR
T3 ¢ (86) 532-8727 3100 EBBURSR : 266300
fBE : (86) 532-8727 3110
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Company Directory
AEER

Chengdu Office:

Room 2919, Building B,

Longhu 3000 Constellations,

No. 2 Jianshe North Road Section 3,
Chengdu City, Sichuan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 28-8328 5026 Zip: 61005
Fax: (86) 28-8328 5126

Xiamen Factory:

I/F & 2/F, -7 Building, Yongquan Industrial Park,
Guankou Town, Jimei District,

Xiamen City, Fujian Province,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 592-6093211  Zip: 361023

Fax: (86) 592-6093600

Tianjin Office:

Room 1616, No. 349 Nanjing Road,
Nankai District, Tianjin,

The People's Republic of China

Tel: (86) 22-8752 8026  Zip: 300073
Fax: (86) 22-8752 8109

Chongqing Office:

Room 3601, Yingli International Financial Center,
No. 28 Minquan Road

Yuzhong District, Chongging,

The People’s Republic of China

Tel: (86) 23-6382 0020  Zip: 400010

Fax: (86) 23-6382 0090
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